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Dear Sir

Re: Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (Exemption No. #82-4201)

On behalf of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, T am
furnishing herewith the Announcements and Circulars pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(111)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for you record.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the said documents by signing and returning the
duplicate of this letter to us by post or by fax at (852) 27575669.

Should you have any queries, please feel free to contact our Ms Nancy Chan at (852)
23315662 or via email at nancy_chan@chevalier.com

. PROCESSED
Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of JUN 07 2007
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED b]’HOMSON
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Dear Sir

Re: Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (Exemption No. #82-4201)

On behalf of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (Formerly known as Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited), a company incorporated in Bermuda with himited liability, I am
furnishing herewith the Announcements and Circulars pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(iii}
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for you record.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the said documents by signing and returning the
duplicate of this letter to us by post or by fax at (852) 27575669.

Should you have any queries, please feel free to contact our Ms Nancy Chan at (852)
23315662 or via email at nancy_chan@chevalier.com

Y ours faithfully
For and on behalf of
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
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“makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
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{(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (incorporated in Bermnuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508) (Stock code: 025)

MAJOR AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION
RESUMPTION OF TRADING

On 12 March 2007, CiTL as the Vendor and CIHL as the Purchaser entered into the Agreement
pursuant to which CiTL agreed to dispose of and CIHL, via its wholly-owned subsidiary, agreed to
purchase each of the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets together with all rights at the Cut-off
Time and thereafter attaching or accruing thereto for an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$56 million, subject to adjustment upon Completion. In addition, CIHL also undertakes to
procure the settlement by the Sale Companies of all amounts due by the Sale Companies to CiTL
Group which amounted to approximately HK$35 million, subject to adjustment upon Completion.

The Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes a major transaction for CiTL
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as CIHL, a substantial shareholder of CiTL, is the purchaser. The Disposal therefore
requires the approval by the independent CiTL Shareholders at the SGM to be convened to consider
and, if thought fit, approve the Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder. As CIHL
has material interest in the Disposal which is different from other CiTL Shareholders, CIHL and
its associates are required to abstain from voting at the SGM. By virtue of Dr. Chow’s 53.97%
interest in CIHL, Dr. Chow and his associates are also required to abstain from voting at the SGM.
A circular containing, among other things, further details of the Agreement. financial information
relating to CiTL Group, the notice of the SGM and other information as required under the Listing
Rules, will be despatched to the CiTL Shareholders as soon as practicable.

The Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes a discloseable transaction for
CIHL under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. A circular containing further information on the
Agreement and other information as required under the Listing Rules will be despatched to the
CIHL Shareholders as soon as possible practicable.

Trading in the shares of CiTL on the Stock Exchange was suspended with effect from 9:30 a.m. on
Tuesday, 13 March 2007 at the request of CiTL pending the release of this announcement.
Application has been made to the Stock Exchange for resumption of trading in the shares of CiTL
with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Thursday, 15 March 2007.
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Parties

Purchaser: CIHL

VYendor: CiTL

The Agreement was entered into by CIHL and CiTL after the close of the trading hours on 12
March 2007.

Assets to be disposed of by CiTL and to be acquired by CIHL Group

Pursuant to the Agreement, CiTL agreed to dispose of and CIHL, via its wholly-owned subsidiary,
agreed to purchase the Sale Business, which comprises:

(a)

(b)

The Sale Shares, representing the entire equity interest of each of the Sale Companies. The
following table sets out the principal business carried out by each of the Sale Companies
and/or through their subsidiaries and associate.

Sale Companies Principal businesses

Chevalier (Thailand} Limited Trading of computer, office equipment and
installation of system

Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited Trading of computer, office equipment and
installation of system

Chevalier Investments (B.V.1l.} Limited [nactive

Great Time Properties Limited [nactive

Cavalier Properties Limited [nactive

HEHEHES (L8 HRA Trading of computer

(Chevalier iTech Trading (Shanghai) Co., Lid.)*
BEMHE LR TR R A Information technology maintenance services

(Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co., Ltd.)*

The unaudited consolidated net asset value of the Sale Companies as at 31 January 2007,
which is prepared in accordance with the HKFRS, amounted to approximately HK$61
million.

The Sale Assets, comprising all the assets and liabilities of Chevalier iTech Limited that
relates to the 1T Business which amounted to an unaudited net asset deficit of approximately
HK$5 million as at 31 January 2007 which is prepared in accordance with the HKFRS.

Given Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, being one of the Sale Companies, is also the
intermediate holding company of certain subsidiaries engaging in other businesses unrelated
to the IT Business, such subsidiaries not engaging in the IT Business (i.e. the Excluded
COA Companies) and the assets held by it and its subsidiaries not used in connection with
the Sale Business (i.e. the Excluded Assets) will be excluded from the Disposal. Whereas
Chevalier iTech Limited, not being one of the Sale Companies, has certain assets and
liabilities related to the IT Business, therefore all such assets and liabilities (i.e. the Sale
Assets) will be disposed of by CiTL pursuant to the Agreement.



each of the two years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006 prepared in accordance with the

HKFRS:
Year ended 31 March
2005 2006
HK$ million HKS$ million
Turnover (audited) 574.9 549.0
Profit before taxation (audited) 1.5 18.4
Profit after taxation and minority interest (unaudited) 1.2 17.4
Consideration

The Aggregate Consideration is approximately HK$56 million, being the aggregate net asset
value of both the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets as at 31 January 2007. The Aggregate
Consideration shall be adjusted with reference to the Net Asset Statement (to be reviewed by
accountants as agreed by the Vendor and the Purchaser). In the event the aggregate adjusted net
asset value of the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets as set out in the Net Asset Statement is
different from HK$56 million, the Aggregate Consideration shall be adjusted accordingly on a
dollar-to-dollar basis with no limit to such adjustment. The aggregate adjusted net asset value of
the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets as set out in the Net Asset Statement is not expected to be
negative.

The Purchaser will pay to the Vendor a refundable deposit of approximately HKS56 million in
cash within three Business Days after the conditions precedent as set out in 4(a) below is
fulfilled. The Aggregate Consideration (subject to adjustment pursuant to the Net Asset Statement)
less the aforesaid refundable deposit shall be payable by the Purchaser to the Vendor at
Completion, in cash from internal resources of CIHL Group. In the event the refundable deposit
exceeds the Aggregate Consideration payable, the Vendor shall return the excess, without interest,
to the Purchaser upon Completion.

Conditions precedent

Completion is conditional upon satisfaction of all of the following conditions by not later than
30 September 2007 or such later date as may be agreed between CiTL and CIHL:

(a) the transactions envisaged by, and the performance of the obligations by the Vendor pursuant
to, the Agreement being approved by a simple majority of shareholders of the Vendor
(excluding those shareholders prohibited by the Listing Rules from voting on the relevant
resolution) voting at the SGM;

(b) the transactions envisaged by, and the performance of the obligations by the Purchaser
pursuant to, the Agreement being approved by the Board of CIHL (including the independent
non-executive directors of CIHL);

(c) all necessary consents and autherisations which may be required to implement the Agreement
under any existing contractual arrangements. or under loan or finance documentation, having
been obtained;




agencies or bodies which the Purchaser reasonabliy consider necessafy or required (after *
prior consultation with the Vendor) for the purposes of the transactions contemplated by the
Agreement having been obtained including without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

(i) all consents or approval from the original approval authority in the PRC required in
relation to the transfer of registered capital in the two wholly-owned foreign enterprises
established in the PRC, namely} - # 4 5 & (L #) H1 R & §] (Chevalier iTech
Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. )* and T L 4= %} 5 T 4 FR 24 51 (Guangzhou Chevalier
iTech Services Co., Ltd.}*; and

(ii) if required, all consents or approvals from the original approval authority in Thailand
required in relation to the transfer of the Sale Shares in respect of Chevalier (Thailand)
Limited and its subsidiaries;

{e) the completion of transfer of interests in the Excluded Assets, in particular, the Excluded
COA Companies by Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited to the Vendor or other subsidiaries
of the Vendor and the payment of all stamp duties related (or otherwise waived by the
Stamp Duty Office of Hong Kong, if applicable);

(f) the due publication and completion by the Vendor and the Purchaser of the notice of
transfer in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of the Transfer of Businesses
(Protection of Creditors) Ordinance (Chapter 49 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in respect of
the Sale Business; and

(g) the issue of the Net Asset Statement, reviewed by such accountants as agreed by the
Vendor and the Purchaser.

Save for conditions (c) and (d) above, none of the conditions precedent can be waived.

In the event that the above conditions are not fulfilled or waived by the parties in writing by 30
September 2007 or such later date as may be agreed between the parties, all rights, obligations
and liabilities of the parties to the Agreement will cease and determine and no party will have
any claim against the other save for any antecedent breach and the return of the refundable
deposit which has been paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor without interest.

Completion

Completion shall take place on the third Business Day following the day on which all the above
conditions are fulfilled or waived or such other date as the parties may agree.

Other terms of the Agreement

(a) all revenues, incomes, liabilities and receivables arising out of or in connection with the
Sale Business after the Cut-off Time, and as shown on the business records which relate to
the Sale Business at or after the Cut-off Time shall belong to the Purchaser;

(b) CIHL undertakes to CiTL to procure the settlement by the Sale Companies to CiTL or its
subsidiaries all amounts due by the Sale Companies, which amounted to approximately
HKS$35 million as at 31 January 2007, subject to adjustment upon Completion; and



given by it in respect of the obligations of the Sale Companies, and otherwise disclosed in
writing to CIHL prior to the Completion Date and to indemnify CiTL Group and keep them
indemnified and held harmless against all claims, losses, damages, costs, expenses and
liabilities arising out of such guarantees and letters of undertaking until such guarantees
and letters of undertaking have been released from the time immediately following
Completion.

REASONS FOR THE DISPOSAL

Following completion of the acquisition of Pacific Coffee in May 2005, CiTL acquired SEL, which
traded under the name “Igor’s”. SEL, through its subsidiaries, operates over 20 food and beverage
outlets in Hong Kong. It is disclosed in CiTL’s 2005/2006 annual report that the Board of CiTL
intends to further develop CiTL Group’s food and beverage business to obtain economy of scale and
broaden the income stream and further explore investment opportunities in food and beverage business
in Hong Kong and neighbouring regions. The respective Boards of CiTL and CIHL consider that the
Disposal realigns CiTL’s business focus and resources and is in line with CiTL Group’s business
strategy. After the Disposal, the Sale Companies will cease to be subsidiaries of CiTL and CiTL will
cease to engage in the IT Business. CiTL has no present intention to dispose of any other business
segments.

In view of the above, the respective Boards of CiTL and CIHL (save for the independent non-
executive directors of CiTL who would reserve their views until receipt of the letter of advice from
the independent financial adviser) consider the terms of the Disposal, including the Aggregate
Consideration and its payment terms, are on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable and
that the Disposal is in the interest of CiTL and CIHL and their respective shareholders.

FINANCIAL EFFECT OF THE DISPOSAL

As the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets are to be disposed of at their respective net asset values
with fair value adjustment on properties, a gain of approximately HK$6 million is expected to arise
from the Disposal for CiTL.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The sale proceeds from the Disposal will be applied as general working capital of CiTL after
Completion.

OTHER INFORMATION

CiTL is an investment holding company which, prior to the Disposal, through its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in the provision of computer and information communication technology services,
food & beverage business and investment in securities.

CIHL is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the
business of construction and engineering, insurance and investment, property investment, hotel

investment, information technology and food & beverage.

After the Disposal, CiTL Group will cease to engage and CIHL Group will directly engage in the IT
Business.

There is no present intention to change the composition of the respective Boards of CTHL and CiTL.
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Under the Listing Rules, the Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes a major
transaction for CiTL. The Disposal also constitutes a connected transaction for CiTL under the Listing
Rules as CIHL, a substantial shareholder of CiTL, is the purchaser and therefore requires the approval
by the independent CiTL Shareholders at the SGM to be convened to consider and, if thought fit,
approve the Agreement and transaction contemplated thereunder. As CIHL has material interest in the
Disposal which is different from other CiTL Shareholders, CIHL and its associates are required to
abstain from voting at the SGM. By virtue of Dr. Chow’s 53.97% interest in CIHL, Dr. Chow and his
associates are also required to abstain from voting at the SGM. A circular containing, among other
things, further details on the Agreement, financial information relating to CiTL Group, the notice of
the SGM and other information as required under the Listing Rules, will be despatched to the CiTL
Shareholders as soon as practicable.

The Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes a discloseable transaction for CIHL
under the Listing Rules. Given the Board of CIHL considers that the Disposal is not price-sensitive to
CIHL and the Disposal only constitutes a discloseable transaction for CIHL which does not require
suspension in trading in CIHL’s shares pursuant to Rule 14.37 of the Listing Rules, CIHL has not
applied for suspension in trading in CIHL’s shares. A circular containing further information on the
Agreement and other information as required under the Listing Rules will be despatched to the CIHL
Shareholders as soon as practicable.

SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of CiTL on the Stock Exchange was suspended with effect from 9:30 a.m. on
Tuesday, 13 March 2007 at the request of CiTL pending the release of this announcement. Application
has been made to the Stock Exchange for resumption of trading in the shares of CiTL with effect from
9:30 a.m. on Thursday, 15 March 2007.

TERMS USED IN THIS ANNOUNCEMENT

“Aggregate the aggregate consideration for the sale and purchase of the Sale Companies
Consideration™ and the Sale Assets
“Agreement” the agreement dated 12 March 2007 entered into between CiTL and CIHL in
relation to the sale and purchase of the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets
“Board” board of directors
“Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are general open

for banking business in Hong Kong
“CIHL” or “Purchaser” Chevalier International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the

main board of the Stock Exchange

“CIHL Group” CIHL and its subsidiaries, not including CiTL Group for the purpose of this
announcement

“CIHL Shareholders” shareholder(s) of CIHL



“CiTL Group”

“CiTL Shareholders™

“Completion”

”

“Completion Date

“Cut-off Time”

“Disposal”

“Dr. Chow”

“Excluded Assets”

“Excluded COA
Companies”

“HKFRS”

“Hong Kong”

“IT Business”

“Listing Rules”

“Net Asset Statement”

i‘PRC”

“Sale Assets”

Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, and an indirectly 56.7% owned subsidiary
of CIHL

CiTL and its subsidiaries
shareholder(s) of CiTL
completion of the Agreement

the third Business Day following the day on which all the conditions
precedent to the Agreement are fulfilled or waived or such other date as the
parties may agree

1 April 2007
disposal of the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets pursuant to the Agreement

Dr. Chow Yei Ching, being the beneficial owner of 53.97% of the issued
share capital of CIHL and the beneficial owner of 3.58% of the issued share
capital of CiTL

those companies, assets, contracts and rights owned, controlled or used by
the Vendor which are not used in connection with or in respect of the Sale
Business (including but not limited to companies and assets engaged in food
and beverage business and securities investment business) and which shall
be excluded from the sale and purchase under the Agreement

being subsidiaries of Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited excluded from the
sale and purchase under the Agreement

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

information technology related business carried out by the Sale Companies
and their respective subsidiaries and associate in Hong Kong, the PRC, and
Thailand

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

the adjusted net assets statement of the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets as at
31 March 2007

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan for the purpose of this
announcement

all assets and liabilities of Chevalier iTech Limited relating to its IT Business

B




documents of the Sale Companies which comprises of the Sale Shares and *
the Sale Assets

“Sale Companies” Chevalier (Thailand) Limited, Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, Chevalier
Investments (B.V.l.) Limited, Great Time Properties Limited, Cavalier
Properties Limited, J: L8 5 8 & (L 1%) 7R 22 7 (Chevalier iTech Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)*, B& M F =B 5 T4 R 2 ¥ (Guangzhou Chevalier
iTech Services Co., Ltd.)* and their respective subsidiaries and associate

“Sale Shares” the entire equity interest of each of the Sale Companies

“SEL” Sinochina Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability being 49% owned by CiTL as at the date of
this announcement

“Settlement” settlement of outstanding amount due by the Sale Companies to CiTL Group
which amounted to approximately HK$35 million as at 31 January 2007,
subject to adjustment upon Completion

“SGM” the special general meeting to be convened by CiTL for CiTL Shareholders
to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
“HKS$” Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
“%” per cent.
By Order of the Board of By Order of the Board of
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited Chevalier International Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching Chow Yei Ching
Chairman Chairman and Managing Direcfor

Hong Kong, 14 March 2007
* for identification only

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of CiTL comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Fung Pak
Kwan, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang. Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as
executive directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as
independent non-executive directors.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of CIHL comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Kuok Hoi
Sang, Mr. Fung Pak Kwan, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Tam Kwok Wing, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and
Mr. Ho Chung Leung as executive directors, and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Li Kwok Heem,
John and Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George as independent non-executive directors.

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.



CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
{Stock code: 508)

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME
AND
APPOINTMENT OF MANAGING DIRECTOR

The Directors of the Company propose to change the name of the Company from “Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited” to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and adopt “X 2 SR IR 45 PR 22 7 as
its new Chinese name for identification purpose.

A circular containing details regarding the proposed change of name of the Company and a notice of
the SGM will be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company as soon as possible.

The Board of the Company also announces that with effect from 1st April, 2007:
(1) Mr. CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar will be appointed as Managing Director of the Company; and

(2) Mr. FUNG Pak Kwan will resign as Managing Director, Executive Committee Member and
Remuneration Committee Member of the Company.

CHANGE OF NAME OF THE COMPANY

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company™) proposes to
change the name.of the Company from “Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” 10 “Chevalier Pacific Holdings
Limited” and adopt “3 - ¥ S5 3 IR 4 FR 22 7~ as its new Chinese name for identification purpose.

The proposed change of name of the Company is to signify the re-alignment of the Company’s business
focus and resources in recent years. The Board of the Company considers that the proposed new name of
the Company provides a better identification of the Company’s new development, which the Board of the
Company considers it is in the interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The proposed change of name of the Company is subject to (i) the passing of a special resolution by the
shareholders of the Company at the Special General Meeting (“SGM”); and (ii) the necessary filing
procedures with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong
approving the proposed change of name of the Company.
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The proposed change of name of the Company will not affect any of the rights of the existing shareholders
of the Company. The share certificates bearing the Company’s existing name will continue to be evidence
of title and valid for trading, settlement and registration purposes. There will be arrangement for free
exchange of existing share certificates for new share certificates under the new name of the Company
after the change of its name has become effective. A further announcement will be made to set out the
details for the arrangement on free exchange of share certificates once the change of name of the
Company becomes effective.

A circular containing details regarding the proposed change of name of the Company and a notice
convening the SGM to seek the approval of the shareholders of the Company will be dispatched to the
shareholders of the Company as soon as possible.

APPOINTMENT OF MANAGING DIRECTOR
The Board of the Company also announces that with effect from 1st April, 2007:
(1) Mr. CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar will be appointed as the Managing Director of the Company; and

(2) Mr. FUNG Pak Kwan will resign as Managing Director, Executive Committee Member and

.Remuneration Committee Member of the Company.
Mr. CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, aged 32, currently an Executive Director of the Company and Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”), joined Chevalier Group in 2000. Mr. Chow holds a degree in
Master of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K. He is currently the Vice Chairman of the
Environment Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies. He is also a Council Member of the Hong Kong Productivity Council and a Committee
Member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council. He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and CIHL and is also a
brother of Ms Lily Chow. an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chow is a director of Chevalier
(HK) Limited (*CHK") and Firstland Company Limited (“Firstland”) which are the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of CIHL and the substantial shareholders of the Company. CHK, Firstland and CIHL have a
discloseable interest in the capital of the Company under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO™).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chow has not held any directorship in any listed public companies in the
last three years and does not hold any position in any member of the Group nor does he have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
sharcholders of the Company and any interests in the shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed under Part XV of the SFO. There is neither any service contract between the Company and Mr.
Chow nor any specified term for the length or proposed length of service with the Company in respect of
the directorship. Mr. Chow is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws, No director’s emoluments were paid to Mr. Chow during the year ended 31st
March, 2006.
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under rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, nor are there other matters concerning him that need to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board of the Company also announces that Mr. FUNG Pak Kwan will resign as the Managing
Director, Executive Commitiee Member and Remuneration Committee Member of the Company for
personal reasons with effect from 1st April 2007.

Mr. Fung and the Board of the Company have confirmed that they have no disagreement and there is no
other matter that needs to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

The Board of the Company would like to take this opportunity to thank Mr. Fung for his invaluable
contribution to the Company during his tenure of office.

By Order of the Board of
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2007

*  for identification purposes only

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Fung
Pak Kwan, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as
executive directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as

independent non-executive directors.

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.
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NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (the
“Company”} will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 2 May 2007 at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial
Centre, § Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
passing, with or without modification, the following resolutions of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the disposal by the Company to Chevalier International Holdings Limited (“CIHL”) of the IT
Business (as more particularly described in the circular of the Company dated 4 April 2007, a copy of
which has been inittalled by the chairman of the special general meeting) pursuant to the agreement dated
12 March 2007 entered into between the Company and CIHL (the “Agreement”™) be and is hereby
approved AND THAT the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to take such action and
execute such documents as they may consider appropriate and expedient in respect of the completion of
the proposed transaction contemplated under the Agreement.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the due registration of the new name with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda
being completed, the name of the Company be changed from *“Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” to
“Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and the new Chinese name of “Jf 4= 3% B # /i 1 PR 2~ 7]~ be adopted
by the Company for identification purposes only AND THAT the directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized generally to take such action and execute such documents as they may consider
necessary and expedient to effect the change of name of the Company.”

~ Yours faithfully,

By order of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Kan Ka Hon
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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Canon's Court 22nd Floor
22 Victoria Street Chevalier Commercial Centre
Hamilton, HM12 8 Wang Hoi Road
Bermuda Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong

* for identification purposes only

Notes:

(1)

()

(3)

4

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and, on a poll vote
on his behalf, and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy for use at the meeting

is enclosed.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or authority under which it is
signed or a certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting
or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a shareholder of the Company from attending
and voting in person at the meeting convened or any adjournment thereof and in such event, the authority of
the proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

In case of joint holders of any share, if more than one of such joint holders be present at any meeting, the
vote of the senior who tenders a vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders, and for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members of the Company in respect of the joint holding.

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Chow

Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as executive directors and

Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as independent non-executive

directors.

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you
should consult your licensed securitics dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant
or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited. you
should at once hand this circular to the purchaser or the transferee or to the bank, licensed
securities dealer through whom the sale or wransfer was effected for transmission to the
purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this
circular, makes no represcntation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or
any part of the contents of this circular.

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
XEEpaEEkapasg:

i
L

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) " :: :':' -3

(Stock code: 508) a% i o

RS

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION -~ 7

AND W <

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME : - g
S B e
Financial adviser to Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited ffﬁ c
- -2

z : SOMERLEY LIMITED

Independent financial adviser to the independent board committee
and the independent shareholders of
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited

ANGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINANCE, LIMITED

A notice convening the special general meeting of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited to be
held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay. Hong
Kong on Wednesday. 2 May 2007 at 10:00 a.m. is set out on pages 110 to 111 of this circular.
Whether or not you are able to attend the mceting. you are requested to complete the
accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it
to the branch share registrar and transfer office of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited in Hong
Kong. Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. as soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting or any adjournment thercof. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting in person at the meeting or any adjournment thereof
should you so wish, .

4 April 2007

* Foridentification only
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings as set out below unless the

context requires otherwise:

“Aggregate Consideration” the agpregate consideration for the sale and purchase of the
Sale Shares and the Sale Assets

“Agreement” the agreement dated 12 March 2007 entered into between the
Company and CIHL in relation to the sale and purchase of the
Sale Shares and the Sale Assets

“Anglo Chinese” Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited, the independent
financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee and the
Independent Shareholders

“associates” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
“Board” the board of Directors
“Business Day” a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are

generally open for banking business in Hang Kong

“CIHL” or “Purchaser” Chevalier International Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange
“CIHL Board” the board of directors of CIHL
“CIHL Group” CIHL and its subsidiaries, not including the Group for the

purpose of this circular

[}

“Company” or “Vendor’ Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the shares
of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
and an indirectly 56.7% owned subsidiary of CIHL as at the

Latest Practicable Date

“Completion” completion of the Agreement

“Completion Date” the third Business Day following the day on which all the
conditions precedent to the Agreement are fulfilled or waived

or such other date as the parties to the Agreement may agree

“*Cut-off Time” 1 Aprii 2007

I




DEFINITIONS

“Director(s)”

“Disposal”

“Dr. Chow”

“Excluded Assets”

“Excluded COA Companies”

“GI’OUp”

“H KFRS”

“Hong Kong”
“Independent Board
Committee”

“Independent Shareholders”

“IT Business”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

director(s) of the Company

the proposed disposal of the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets
by the Company pursuant to the Agreement

Dr. Chow Yei Ching, the beneficial owner of 53.97% of the
issued share capital of CIHL and 3.58¢% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date

those companies, assets, contracts and rights owned, controlled
or used by the Vendor which are not used in connection with
or in respect of the IT Business {including but not limited to
companies and assets engaged in food and beverage business
and securities investment business) and which shall be excluded
from the sale and purchase under the Agreement

being subsidiaries of Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited excluded
from the sale and purchase under the Agreement

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

an independent committee of the Board comprising Mr. Shinichi
Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing,
all of whom independent non-executive Directors

Sharehelders other than CIHL, Dr. Chow and their respective
associates

the information technology business and related business within
the scope of the constituent documents of the Sale Companies
which comprise the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets

2 April 2007, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for ascertaining certain information

contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange




DEFINITIONS

“Model Code”

“Net Asset Statement”

“Pacific Coffee”

upRCn

“Properties”

“Sale Assets”

“Sale Companies”

“Sale Shares”

“SEL”

“SEL Group”

“Settlement”

“SGM”

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules

the adjusted net assets statement of the Sale Companies and
the Sale Assets as at 31 March 2007

Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited, a company incorperated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 25 July 1995

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
for the purpose of this circular

the properties to be disposed of by the Group to the CIHL
Group under the Disposal

all assets and liabilities of Chevalier iTech Limited relating to
the [T Business

Chevalier (Thailand) Limited, Chevalier (OA) Holdings
Limited, Chevalier Investments (B.V.l.) Limited, Great Time
Properties Limited, Cavalier Properties Limited, 3L £ B 3 &
5 (L) 77 Bl 4% =] (Chevalier iTech Trading (Shanghai) Co.,
Led.)*, B H B T A KA 7 (Guangzhou Chevalier
iTech Services Co., Ltd.}* and their respective subsidiaries
and associated companies

the entire equity interest of each of the Sale Companies

Sinochina Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and which was
49% owned by the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date

SEL and its subsidiaries

settlement of outstanding amount due by the Sale Companies
to the Group which amounted to approximately HK$35 million
as at 31 January 2007, subject to adjustment upon Completion

the special general meeting to be convened by the Company
for the Independent Shareholders to consider and, if thought
fit, to approve the Agreement and the transaction contemplated
thereunder

* The English translation is for identification only
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DEFINITIONS

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Sharcholder(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Tenancy Agreements”

ALHK$”
“RMB”
“sq. ft.”

§q. m.

ﬁk%”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.5 each in the share capital of the
Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

collectively, the tenancy agreements entered into by Chevalier
(OA) Holdings Limited as tenant with each of Winfield
Development Limited, Peak Gain Limited and Oriental Sharp
Limited respectively as landlords dated 28 November 2006 in
relation to the leasing of certain premises

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

square feet

square meters

per cent.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEMsEEkaRAA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508)

Fxecutive Directors: Registered office:
CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) Canon’s Court
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director) 22 Victoria Street
KUOK Hoi Sang Hamilton, HM 12
KAN Ka Hon Bermuda
CHOW Lily
Head office and principal
Independent non-executive Directors: place of business:
YONEHARA Shinichi 22nd Floor
WU King Cheong Chevalier Commercial Centre
KWONG Man Sing 8 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong
4 April 2007

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION
AND
PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

INTRODUCTION

On 12 March 2007, the Company as the Vendor and CIHL as the Purchaser entered into
the Agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to dispose of and CIHL agreed to
purchase, via its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Sale Shares and the Sale Assets together with
all rights at the Cut-off Time and thereafter attaching or accruing thereto for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$56 million, subject to adjustment upon Completion. In
addition, CIHL also undertakes to procure the settlement by the Sale Companies of all amounts
due by the Sale Companies to the Group which amounted to approximately HK$35 million,
subject to adjustment upon Completion.

*  For identification only



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

The Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes a major transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as CIHL, a substantial Shareholder, is the purchaser to the Agreement.
The Disposal therefore requires the approval by the Independent Shareholders by way of poll
at the SGM to be convened to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder. As CIHL has material interest in the Disposal which is
different from other Shareholders, CIHL and its associates are required to abstain from voting
at the SGM. By virtue of Dr. Chow’s 53.97% interest in CIHL, Dr. Chow and his associates
are also required to abstain from voting at the SGM.

The Independent Board Committee, comprising all three independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing, has
been constituted by the Company to advise the Independent Shareholders. Anglo Chinese has
been appointed by the Company to advise the Independent Board Committee and the
Independent Shareholders as regards the terms of the Agreement.

The Board proposes to change the English name of the Company from “Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited"” to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and adopt the Chinese name “¥
+ i SR AR A R A R17 in liew of “3 R # M A R4 5] for identification purpose.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with further details of the Agreement, the
letiter from the Independent Board Committee, the letter from Anglo Chinese, financial
information relating to the Group, the notice of the SGM and other information as required
under the Listing Rules.

THE AGREEMENT DATED 12 MARCH 2007
1. Parties
Vendor: The Company

Purchaser: CIHL

The Agreement was entered into by the Company and CIHL on 12 March 2007.
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2.

*

Assets to be disposed of by the Company

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company agreed to dispose of and CIHL agreed to
purchase, via its wholly-owned subsidiary, the IT Business, which comprises:

(a)

(b)

the Sale Shares, representing the entire equity interest of each of the Sale
Companies. The following table sets out the principal business carried out by
each of the Sale Companies and/or through their subsidiaries and associated
companies.

Sale Companies Principal businesses

Chevalier (Thailand) Limited Trading of computers, office equipment
and installation of system

Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited Trading of computers, office equipment

and installation of system
Chevalier Investments (B.V.1.) Limited Inactive

Great Time Properties Limited Inactive
Cavalier Properties Limited Inactive
HEHREL (LB ARLA Trading of computers

(Chevalier iTech Trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.)*
B ETHETERRL A Information technology maintenance
{(Guangzhou Chevalier services
iTech Services Co., Ltd.)*

The unaudited consolidated net asset value of the Sale Companies as at 31 January
2007, prepared in accordance with the HKFRS, amounted to approximately HK$61
million.

the Sale Assets, comprising all the assets and liabilities of Chevalier iTech Limited
related to the IT Business, the unaudited net deficit of which amounted to
approximately HK$5 million as at 31 January 2007, which are prepared in
accordance with the HKFRS.

Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, one of the Sale Companies, is also the intermediate
holding company of certain subsidiaries engaging in other businesses unrelated to the IT
Business. Subsidiaries of Chevalier (QA) Holdings Limited not engaging in the IT Business
(i.e. the Excluded COA Companies) and the assets held by it and its subsidiaries not used in
connection with the IT Business (i.e. the Excluded Assets) will be excluded from the Disposal.
Chevalier iTech Limited, not being one of the Sale Companies, has certain assets and liabilities
related to the 1T Business, and therefore all such assets and liabilities (i.e. the Sale Assets)
will be disposed of by the Company pursuant to the Agreement.

The English transiation is for identification only
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LETTER FROM THE BOARD

Set out below is the aggregate turnover, profit before taxation, profit after taxation and
minority interest of the Sale Companies (excluding the Excluded COA Companies) and the
Sale Assets for each of the (wo years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006 prepared in accordance
with the HKFRS:

Year ended 31 March

2005 2006

HKS$ million HKS$ million

Turnover (audited) 574.9 549.0
Profit before taxation (audited) 1.5 18.4
Profit after taxation and minority interest (unaudited) 1.2 17.4

3. Consideration

The Aggregate Consideration is approximately HK$56 million, being the aggregate net
asset value of both the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets as at 31 January 2007, subject to
adjustment. The above net asset value includes an upward fair value adjustment of
approximately HK$6 million on the Properties, which are recorded at cost on the accounts of
the Group according to the Group’s accounting policy. Accordingly, such fair value adjustment
is expected to result in a gain on the Disposal for the Company.

The Aggregate Consideration shall be adjusted with reference to the Net Assel Statement
(to be reviewed by an independent firm of accountants the appointment of which shall be
agreed by the Vendor and the Purchaser). In the event that the aggregate adjusted net asset
value of the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets as set out in the Net Asset Statement is
different from HK$56 million, the Aggregate Consideration shall be adjusted accordingly on a
dollar-to-dollar basis with no limit to such adjustment. The aggregate adjusted net asset value
of the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets as set out in the Net Asset Statement is not
expected to be negative.

The Aggregatie Consideration is not determined on a price-to-earning (“P/E”) multiple
basis as the profitability of the IT Business has been unstable in the past five financial years.
During the five years ended 31 March 2006, the segment results (before tax) of the IT
Business fluctuated from a loss of HK$8.0 million in 2002 to a gain of HK$18.4 million in
2006. The fluctuations during the past five financial years did not demonstrate any predictable
trend. [n view of the above, both the Company and CIHL consider that it would be difficult to
determine the Aggregate Consideration by a P/E multiple basis with reference to the past
profitability of the IT Business. Having considered that the Disposal is for the purpose of
rationalising the structure of the Group and realigning the business focus of the Group, both
of the Company and CIHL consider the net asset value basis (with fair value adjustment on
the Properties) a fair and reasonable basis without compromising the financial position of
either the Company or CIHL.
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The Purchaser will pay to the Vendor a refundable deposit of approximately HK$56
million in cash within three Business Days after the conditions precedent as set out in 4(a)
below is fulfilled. The Aggregate Consideration (subject to adjustment pursuant to the Net
Asset Statement) less the aforesaid refundable deposit shall be payable by the Purchaser to the
Vendor at Completion, in cash from internal resources of the CIHL Group. In the event that
the refundable deposit exceeds the Aggregate Consideration payable, the Vendor shall return
the excess, without interest, to the Purchaser upon Completion.

4, Conditions precedent

Completion is conditional upon satisfaction of all of the following conditions by not
later than 30 September 2007 or such later date as may be agreed between the Company and
CIHL:

(a} the transactions envisaged by, and the performance of the obligations by the
Vendor pursuant to, the Agreement being approved by a simple majority of
shareholders of the Vendor (excluding those shareholders prohibited by the Listing
Rules from voting on the relevant resolution) voting at the SGM,

(b} the transactions envisaged by, and the performance of the obligations by the
Purchaser pursuant to, the Agreement being approved by the CIHL Board
(including the independent non-executive directors of CIHL});

(c) all necessary consents and authorisations which may be required to implement
the Agreement under any existing contractual arrangements, or under loan or
finance documentation, having been obtained;

(d) all authorisations, consents and approvals of all governmental or regulatory
authorities, agencies or bodies which the Purchaser reasonably consider necessary
or required (after prior consultation with the Vendor) for the purposes of the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement having been obtained including
without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

(i) all consents or approval from the original approval authority in the PRC
required in relation to the transfer of registered capital in the two wholly-
owned foreign enterprises established in the PRC, namely3 + # £ ¥ 5
(L i) # R 2 %) (Chevalier iTech Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. }* and fi§
M A B DR A B 4 8] (Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co.,
Lid.)*; and

(ii)  if required, all consents or approvals from the original approval authority
in Thailand required in relation to the transfer of the Sale Shares in respect
of Chevalier (Thailand) Limited and its subsidiaries;

*  The English translation is for identification only
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(e)

(f)

(2)

the compietion of transfer of interests in the Excluded Assets, in particular, the
Excluded COA Companies by Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited to the Vendor or
other subsidiaries of the Vendor and the payment of ali related stamp duties {(or
otherwise waived by the Stamp Duty Office of Hong Kong, if applicable);

the due publication and completion by the Vendor and the Purchaser of the notice
of transfer in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of the Transfer of
Businesses (Protection of Creditors) Ordinance (Chapter 49 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) in respect of the IT Business; and

the issue of the Nel Asset Statement, reviewed by such accountants as agreed by
the Vendor and the Purchaser.

Save for conditions (c¢) and (d) above, none of the conditions precedent can be

waived.

In the event that the above conditions are not fulfilled or waived by the parties in

writing by 30 September 2007 or such later date as may be agreed between the parties, all

rights, obligations and liabilities of the parties to the Agreement will cease and determine and

no party will have any claim against the other save for any antecedent breach and the return of

the refundable deposit which has been paid by the Purchaser to the Vendor without interest.

5. Completion

Completion shall take place on the third Business Day following the day on which all

the above conditions are fulfilled or waived or such other date as the pariies may agree.

6. Other terms of the Agreement

(a)

(b)

all revenues, incomes, liabilities and receivables arising out of or in connection
with the IT Business after the Cut-off Time, and as shown on the business records
which relate to the IT Business at or after the Cut-off Time shall belong 10 the
Purchaser;

CIHL undertakes to the Company to procure the settlement by the Sale Companies
to the Group all amounts due by the Sale Companies, which amounted to
approximately HK$35 million as at 31 January 2007, subject. 10 adjustment upon
Completion; and

— 10—
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(c) CIHL undertakes to procure the release of the Company from all guarantees and
letters of undertaking given by it in respect of the obligations of the Sale
Companies, and otherwise disclosed in writing to CIHL prior to the Completion
Date and to indemnify the Group and keep it indemnified and held harmless
against all claims, losses, damages, costs, expenses and liabilities arising out of
such guarantees and letters of undertaking until such guarantees and letters of
undertaking have been released from the time immediately following Completion.

INFORMATION ON THE IT BUSINESS

The history of the Group’s IT Business dates back to 1983, when the Group began to
distribute a wide range of Toshiba office automation equipment in Hong Kong and Macau. In
1987, the Group became the sole distributor of Toshiba computer equipment in Hong Kong.
Since then, the Group has been distributing Toshiba computer equipment under sole
distributorship until 1999. Despite the expiry of the sole distributorship in 1999, the distribution
relationship has remained in place and the terms of purchase of Toshiba products have been
agreed on a product-by-product basis.

Set out below is the turnover and segment results of the IT Business for the five years
ended 31 March 2006 and for the six months ended 30 September 2005 and 30 September
2006 as extracted from the relevant annual reports and interim report of the Company:

For the
six months ended
For the year ended 31 March 30 September
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2005 2006

HK$ million HK$ million HK$’million HKS million HK$ ' million HK$ million HK3 million
Turnover 5735 586.9 545.1 574.9 549.0 296.4 2568

Segment results
(before tax} (8.0) 2.3 1.8 1.5 18.4 9.1 6.0

Turnover of the IT Business for the past five financial years has remained fairly stable,
but segment results of the IT Business for the same period fluctuated dramatically. Both
turnover and segment results of the IT Business for the six months ended 30 September 2006
dropped from that for the six months ended 30 September 2005. The above financials show
that the IT Business has experienced no sustained growth.

— 11—
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BACKGROUND TO AND REASONS FOR THE DISPOSAL

Following completion of the acquisition of Pacific Coffee in May 2005, the Company
acquired SEL, which traded under the name “Igor’s”. SEL, through its subsidiaries, operates
over 20 food & beverage outlets in Hong Kong. The businesses of both Pacific Coffee and
SEL have demonstrated consistent growth in profitability over the last three financial years,
while the IT Business has experienced no sustained growth. With the satisfactory track record
of Pacific Coffee and SEL, the Board considers that the Group’s food & beverage business
has more expansion and growth opportunities as compared with the IT Business. It is disclosed
in the Company’s circular in relation to the acquisitiocn of SEL dated 7 February 2007 that the
Board intends to further explore investment opportunities in food & beverage business in
Hong Kong and neighbouring regions.

Both the Board and the CIHL Board consider that the Disposal realigns the Company’s
business focus and resources and is in line with the Group’s business strategy. In addition, the
proceeds from the Disposal may be used to fund the new business direction and/or reduce the
existing debt of the Group. In view of the above, both the Board and the CIHL Board consider
that the Disposal is in the interest of the Company and CIHL and their respective shareholders.

After the Disposal, the Sale Companies will cease to be subsidiaries of the Company
and the Company will cease to engage in the IT Business. The Company has no present
intention to dispose of any other business segments.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE DISPOSAL
Earnings

After Completion, the economic benefits of the IT Business will no longer belong to the
Group. Shareholders should note that for the year ended 31 March 2006, contributions from
the IT Business represented half of the profit of the Group. If the Disposal is approved and
completed, the profitability of the Group may decrease significantly. The contribution from
the recently acquired SEL. may counter balance such profit reductions, given the continued
profitability of SEL. For the year ended 31 December 2005, the SEL Group reported net
profits of approximately HK$8.3 million.

As the Sale Companies and the Sale Assets are to be disposed of at their respective net
asset values with fair value adjustment on the Properties, a gain of approximately HK$6
million is expected to arise from the Disposal for the Company.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had total bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$101 million. Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a percentage of bank and other
borrowings over total equity of approximately HK$411 million, was 24.6%. After Completion,
certain borrowings related to the Sale Companies would no longer be consolidated into the
Group and accordingly total borrowings of the Group would reduce to approximately HK$92
million. The gearing ratio of the Group is not expected to be materially adversely affected by
the Disposal.

— 12
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Assets and liabilities

Subject to completion of the Agreement, the assets and liabilities of the Sale Companies
and the Sale Assets would not be consolidated into the accounts of the Group commencing
from the Cut-off Time.

USE OF PROCEEDS

It is disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 14 March 2007 in relation to the
Disposal that the sale proceeds from the Disposal will be applied as general working capital
of the Company after Completion. Subsequent to the issue of the aforesaid announcement, the
Board has reviewed the financial needs of the Group after Completion and considered that
such sale proceed will be used in the food & beverage business of the Group with possible
uses such as settlement of the second tranche of the SEL consideration andfor repayment of
the bank loans related to the acquisition of Pacific Coffee.

The Board is yet to determine the extent to which the sale proceeds will be applied to
each of the above uses. In particular, the settlement of the second tranche of the SEL
consideration will only be required in 2009 pursuant to the terms of the agreement in relation
to the acquisition of SEL. The Directors will review the financial needs of the Group after
Completion from time to time in considering the actual use of the sale proceeds.

For information purpose, the bank loans related to the acquisition of Pacific Coffee bear
interest at HIBOR plus 0.5% and is repayable by quarterly repayment. The last repayment
shali be in June 2010. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the outstanding amount of such bank
loans was approximately HK$89 million.

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The Board proposes to change the English name of the Company from Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited” to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and adopt the Chinese name “J
L Z S IRAT R B in lieu of “H - 112 BUA BR 2% G for identification purpose so as

to reflect the focus of the Group’s deployment of resources in the future.

The proposed change of name of the Company will be subject to (i) approval of the
Shareholders by the passing of a special resolution at the SGM; and (ii) the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda granting approval for the change of name of the Company, and shall
take effect from the date on which the approval for the change of name of the Company being
granted by the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. Upon the proposed change of name of the
Company becoming effective, the Company will carry out the necessary filing procedures
with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong.

The proposed change of name of the Company will not affect any of the rights of the
existing Shareholders. All existing share certificates in issue bearing the present name of the
Company will continue to be evidence of title to the Shares and will remain valid for trading,
settlement and delivery for the same number of Shares after the change of name of the
Company. Any issue of share certificates thereafter will be in the new name of the Company.
There will be arrangement for free exchange of the existing share certificates of the Company
for new share certificates printed in the new name of the Company. Once the change of name
becomes effective, Shareholders may, if they so wish, during the period of one month, deliver
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existing share certificates in respect of the shares of the Company held by them to the
Company’s branch registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited at
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, to exchange at the expense of
the Company, for the new share certificates bearing the new name of the Company. After the
expiry of such one month period, share certificates of the Company will be accepted for
exchange at the expense of the Shareholders. Such exchanges will incur a fee of HK$2.50 (or
such higher amount as may from time to time be charged) for each of such certificate to be
issued. An announcement will be made shouid the change of name of the Company become
effective.

THE SGM

Under the Listing Rules, the Disposal, when aggregated with the Settlement, constitutes
a major transaction for the Company. The Disposal also constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules as CIHL, a substantial Shareholder, is the purchaser.
The Disposal therefore requires the approval by the Independent Shareholders by way of poll
at the SGM to be convened to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder. As CIHL has material interest in the Disposal which is
different from other Sharcholders, CIHL and its associates are required to abstain from voting
at the SGM. By virtue of Dr. Chow’s 53.97% interest in CIHL, Dr. Chow and his associates
are also required to abstain from voting at the SGM.

The Independent Board Committee has been constituted by the Company to advise the
Independent Shareholders, and Anglo Chinese has been appointed by the Company to advise
the Independent Board Committee and the Independent Shareholders as regards the terms of
the Agreement.

Set out on pages 110 to 111 of this circular is a notice of the SGM to be held at 22nd
Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, on
Wednesday, 2 May 2007 at 10:00 a.m., at which an ordinary resolution ard a special resolution
will be proposed and, if consider appropriate, passed to approve the Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder, and the proposed change of name of the Company
respectively, No Shareholder is required to abstain from voting in respect of the special
resolution to the SGM with regard to the proposed change of name of the Company.

A form of proxy for use at the SGM is enclosed. Whether or not vou are able to attend
the SGM., you are requested to complete the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with
the instructions printed thereon and return it to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, as soon as possible and in any event not later than 48
hours before the time for holding of the SGM or any adjournment thereof. Completion and
return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the
SGM or any adjournment thereof should you so wish.

PROCEDURE FOR DEMANDING A POLL

In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder are subject to the approval by the Independent Shareholders by way
of poll at the SGM,
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Pursuant to bye-law 76 of the bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to vote at a
general meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the
declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a
pell) demanded by:

{a) the chairman of the meeting; or

{b)  at least three Shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative for
the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(¢) by any Sharehoider or Shareholders present in person or by proxy or by
representative and representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting; or

(d) by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by proxy or by
representative and holding Shares conferring a right to vote at the meeting being
Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-
tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring that right.

The poll results at the SGM will be published by way of an announcement in local
newspapers on the Business Day following the SGM in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE DISPOSAL

Winfield Development Limited, Peak Gain Limited and Oriental Sharp Limited, being
three wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL, have been leasing certain premises to Chevalier
(QA) Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Details of the Tenancy
Agreements have been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28 November
2006.

Winfield Development Limited, Peak Gain Limited and Oriental Sharp Limited are
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated
under the Tenancy Agreements therefore constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules, Since the total annual rental payable by Chevalier (OA)
Holdings Limited under the Tenancy Agreements represents less than 2.5% of the applicable
percentage ratios of the Company, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy Agreements
were subject to the reporting and announcement requirements under Rules 14A.34, 14A.45 to
14A.47 of the Listing Rules and were exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Agreement, Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, being one of the Sale
Companies, will be acquired by the CIHL Group. Accordingly, upon completion of the
Agreement, the transactions contemplated under the Tenancy Agreements will no longer
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules and the
Company will cease to comply with the reporting requirements under 14A.45 and 14A.46 of
the Listing Rules and the annual review requirements under Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Tenancy Agreements.
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INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY AND CIHL

The Company is an investment holding company which, prior to the Disposal, through
its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the provision of computer and information
communication technology services, food & beverage business and investment in securities.

CIHL is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the business of construction and engineering, insurance and investment, property
investment, hotel investment, information technology and food & beverage.

After the Disposal, the Group will cease to engage and the CIHL Group will directly
engage in the IT Business.

Save for the changes in directorships in the Company and in CIHL as disclosed in the
announcements of the Company and CIHL both dated 30 March 2007, there is no present
intention to change the composition of the Board and the CIHL Board.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the terms and conditions of the Agreement are fair and
reasonable, and the entering into of the Agreement and the proposed change of name of the
Company are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Directors recommend the Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary
resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favour of the special
resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the change of name of the Company.

Your attention is drawn to the recommendation of the Independent Board Committee
(as set out on page 17 of this circular) and the advice of Anglo Chinese (as set out on pages
18 to 26 of this circular) regarding the terms of the Agreement.

The Independent Board Committee, having taken into account the advice of Anglo
Chinese, considers that the Disposal, although not in the ordinary and usual course of business,
is on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly the Independent Board Committee recommends the
Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the
SGM to approve the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the letter from the Independent Board Commitiee, the letter
of advice from Anglo Chinese, the financial information on the Group set out in Appendix I to
this circular, the financial information on the SEL Group set out in Appendix II to this
circular, the valuation reports on the Properties set out in Appendix Il to this circular, the
general information set out in Appendix IV to this circular and the notice convening the SGM.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman
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o

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEpErkaRaAAE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}

(Stock code: 508)

4 April 2007
To the Independent Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,
MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTION

We refer to the circular of the Company dated 4 April 2007 (the “Circular™), of which
this letter forms part. Capitalised terms used herein have the same meanings as those defined
in the Circular unless the context otherwise requires.

We have been appointed as members of the Independent Board Committee to consider
the terms of the Agreement and to advise you as to whether, in our opinion, such terms are
fair and reasonable so far as the Company and the Independent Shareholders are concerned
and the entering into of the Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole,

Anglo Chinese has been appointed as the independent financial adviser to advise us and
you regarding the terms of the Agreement. Details of its advice, together with the principal
factors and reasons it has taken into consideration in giving its advice, are contained in its
letter set out on pages 18 to 26 of the Circular. Your attention is also drawn to the letter from
the Board and the additional information set out in the appendices to the Circular.

Having considered the terms of the Agreement and the independent advice of Anglo
Chinese, we consider that the Disposal although not in the ordinary and usual course of
business, is on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, we recommend the Independent
Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the SGM to
approve the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

Yours faithfully,
Yonehara Shinichi Wu King Cheong Kwong Man Sing
Independent Board Committee

*  For identification only
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The following is the texi of the letter from Anglo Chinese to the Independent Board
Committee and the Independent Shareholders prepared for the purpose of inclusion in this

circular.
'; b
5

ANGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINANCE, LIMITED

40th Floor, Two Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

UDEE RS- F

The Independent Board Committee
and the Independent Shareholders

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong
4 April, 2007
Dear Sirs,
MAJOR DISPOSAL
AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTION
INTRODUCTION

We refer to our appointment as the independent financial adviser to the Independent
Board Committee and the Independent Shareholders in relation to the Disposal.

The purchaser, CIHL, is a substantial Shareholder and is therefore a connected person
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Disposal to CIHL is a connected transaction and
requires approval by the Independent Sharcholders, being those shareholders of the Company,
other than CIHL and those persons associated with it, CIHL and its associates will abstain
from voting on the ordinary resolution regarding the Disposal. Details of the Disposal are
contained in the circular of the Company dated 4 April, 2007 (the “Circular”), of which this
letter forms part. Expressions used in this letter have the same meanings as defined in the
Circular.

The Independent Board Committee, comprising the Company’s three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Messrs. Yonehara Shinichi, Wu King Cheong and Kwong Man
Sing, has been formed to consider whether the Disposal is on normal commercial terms, fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, We have
been appointed to advise the Independent Board Committee and the Independent Shareholders
accordingly,
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In formulating our recommendation, we have relied on the information and facts supplied,
and the opinions expressed, by the Directors. We have also assumed that the information and
representations contained, or referred to, in the Circular were true and accurate at the time
they were made and continue to be so as at the date of the Circular. We have no reason to
doubt the truth, accuracy and completeness of the information and representations provided to
us by the Directors. We have also been advised by the Directors and believe that no material
facts have been omitted from the Circular. We have not, however, conducted an independent
investigation into the affairs of the Group.

Nevertheless, we consider we have reviewed sufficient information to reach an informed
view, to justify reliance on the accuracy of the information contained in the Circular and to
provide a reasonable basis for our recommendation.

Apart from normal professional fees for our services to the Company in connection
with the engagement described above, no arrangement exists whereby Anglo Chinese will
receive any benefits from CIHL, the Company or any of their respective associates.

PRINCIPAL FACTORS

We have set out below the principal factors that we have taken into account in arriving
at our advice to the Independent Board Committee and the Independent Shareholders.

History of the IT Business

At the time of its listing in 1988, the Company was primarily engaged in the IT Business.
These business activities comprised mainly of the distribution of computer and office equipment,
network and telecommunication services and technical and maintenance services. The Group
is the sole distributor of various Toshiba office automation equipment, portable personal
computers and key telephone systems. It also distributes NEC and OKI branded office
equipment, computers and key telephone systems. For the year ended 31 March, 2006, the
Group recorded a turnover and segmental profit for its I'T Business of approximately HK$549.0
million and HK$18.4 million, respectively.

Saies of Toshiba products have historically represented a substantial portion of the
turnover of the IT Business. For the year ended 31 March, 2006, purchases from Toshiba
represented over 75% of the IT Business cost of goods sold. The Group’s and CIHL’s
relationship with Toshiba extends as far back as 1970 when CIHL was a supplier of Toshiba
lifts and escalators in Hong Kong. In 1983, the Group expanded its Toshiba product offerings
as a distributor for a wide range of Toshiba office automation equipment in Hong Kong and
Macau, and then diversifying into Toshiba computer equipment in 1987 as the sole distributor
in Hong Kong. Distribution agreements between Toshiba and the Group in relation to computer
equipment and office automation equipment have been allowed to expire during the years
from 1995 to 1999. Since then, the distribution relationship has remained in place and the
terms of purchase of Toshiba products have been agreed on a product by product basis, which
has allowed flexibility in the purchase prices and minimum purchase quantities of Toshiba
products.
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The following is a summary of the audited consolidated segmental results of Group for
the five years ended 31 March, 2006 and unaudited consclidated segmental results for the six
meonths ended 30 September, 2005 and 2006:

For the six months

For the year ended 31 March ended 30 September
2002 2003 2004 2005 1006 2008 2006
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(restated) {unaudited)  {unaudited)
Turnover
Computer and information
communication
technology 573,549 586,362 545,112 574,860 549,011 296,408 259,798
Food and beverage — — — — 179,469 72,51 115,963
Investments in securities
and others 1,936 12,989 124477 112,248 103.265 59,835 6,113
General merchandise trading 34,034 14,159 — — — - —
Telecommunication services
and retailing 161,019 73.893 994 —_ — - —
Paging services 4826 — — — — - —
775,364 637,003 670,583 687,108 831,745 428.754 381.879
Segment results (before tax)
Computer and information
communication
technology {7.970) 1254 1,769 1,546 18,352 9,145 5.999
Food and beverage — - - — 18,794 7,198 8,149
Investments in securities
and others 15.357 (2.458) 13,856 1,349 573 5,302 8,392
General merchandise trading {(1.416) {5.053) — — - — —
Telecommunication services
and retailing (12.888) (8.612) 2,780 — - — —
Paging services (881) — — - — - —
{13,798) {13.869) 13,405 3,895 42,880 22,245 22,540
For the six months
For the year ended 31 Mareh ended 30 September
2002 2003 2004 003 2000 2005 2006
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
{restated) {unaudited)  (unaudited)
Segment profit margin (before tax)
Computer and information
commeaication
technology -1.39% 0.38% 0.32% 0.21% 3.34% 1.05% 2.3%
Food and beverage fa nfa ia nfa 10.47% 10.75% 1.03%
Investments in securities
and others 793.23% -18.92% 11.13% 1.20% 5.55% 8.86% 131.17%
General merchandise trading ~ -21.79% -35.69% nfa nfa nfi nfa fa
Telecommunication services
and retailing -8.00% -11.65% 279.68% 1/ nfa nfa nfa
Paging services -18.26% nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa nfa
Profit after tax {9.429) (22,197) 22,863 1,553 36,960 11,250 15,664
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Since 2002, the turnover of the IT Business has remained relatively stable. In 2005, the
Group underwent some operational restructuring to reduce costs. Staff numbers were reduced
and under performing units were closed down. The results of the restructuring can be seen in
the marked increase in profits of the IT Business during the year ended 31 March, 2006. The
implemented cost reduction together with improved gross margins and an exchange gain of
some HK$2.8 million, arising from US dollar forward contracts, resulted in a multifold increase
in profit for the division. Excluding this non recurring exchange gain the unaudited profit
after tax of the IT Business of HK$17.4 million would have been approximately HK$15.1
million. The improved gross margins in the 2006 financial year were a result of a change in
the relative contribution of revenue generating activities in the IT Business to more service
related activities and improved sales on certain higher margin computer products.

The profit margins of the IT Business have varied substantially during the five prior
financial years. During the 2006 financial year profit margins increased over 12 fold from
0.27% to 3.34%. The IT Business has not experienced this level of margins since 2001 when
it was still engaged in the retail sale of computer and telecommunications systems though
self-operated retails stores.

In the six months ended 30 September, 2006, the 1T Business remained profitable
however a decline in turnover and profit margins from the comparable period to the year prior
was experienced. Turnover fell from HK$296.4 million to HK$259.8 million and margins
were reduced from 3.09% to 2.31%. Profits before tax for the period fell approximately 34%
to HK$5.9 million. Profits after tax amounted to approximately HK$5.4 million.

On the basis of the interim results for the six months ended 30 September, 2004, 2005
and 2006 and the final results for the year ended 31 March, 2006, the results of the Group for
the 12 months period to 30 September, 2005 and 2006 can be calculated as follows. In order
to arrive at our assessment of the recurring profits of the IT Business for these periods the non
recurring exchange gains for these periods has been eliminated.

Trailing 12 Trailing 12

months ended months ended

30 September, 2005 30 September, 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000

Year ended 31 March, 2006 (2005) 1,546 18,352
Less: Exchange gains 971) (2,754)
Less: Interim ended 30 September, 2005 (2004) (3,703) (9,145)
Add: Exchange gains — 1,696
Add: Interim ended 30 September, 2006 (2005) 9,145 5,999
Less: Exchange gains (1.696) —
Profit before tax for IT Business 4,321 14,148

The profits before tax for the trailing 12 months ended 30 September, 2006 concur with

the declining profit trend reflected in the interim results. The profits after tax for the same
period were approximately HK$12.3 million.
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Background of the Group’s food and beverage businesses

In 2005, the Group recognising the highly competitive environment in which the IT
Business operated, diversified its operations by acquiring Pacific Coffee. Pacific Coffee operates
an established retail coffee business in Hong Kong with 44 shops at the time. For the year
ended 31 March, 2003, Pacific Coffee recorded an audited consolidated profit after tax of
HK$21.0 million compared to approximately HK3$1.5 million for the Group for the same
period.

On | December, 2006, the Company announced its second food and beverage acquisition.
The Company acquired SEL for a maximum consideration of HK$200 million to be settled in
two tranches and adjusied based on the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation for SEL during its 2006, 2007 and 2008 financial years. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, the first tranche has been paid representing 49% of the issued shate capital of SEL. The
amount of approximately HK$42.8 mitlion for the first tranche was paid in cash from the cash
resources of the Group. The payment for the second tranche will be paid at a future date based
on the performance of SEL. Further details of the acquisition of SEL are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated | December, 2006 and the circular dated 7 February, 2007.

This acquisition represented a future concentration of the Group’s resources in the food
and beverage sector which is proposed to be the primary focus of the Group in the future.

For the year ended 31 December, 2005, SEL recorded an audited consolidated profit
after tax of HK$8.3 million.

Terms of the Agreement

The Company has agreed to dispose of its IT Business which consists of the Sale
Companies and Sales Assets, excluding the Excluded COA Companies and Excluded Assets.

The Purchaser has agreed to purchase the IT Business for an effective consideration of
HK$91 million, based on the net asset value of HK$56 million, and settlement of all amounts
due from the Sale Companies to the Company which as at 31 January, 2007 amounted to
HK$35 million. The arrangements relating to the settlement of the amounts are described in
greater detail below. This consideration amount is subject to adjustment according to the Net
Asset Statement to be prepared as at 31 March, 2007, and to be reviewad by the accountants
agreed by the Vendor and the Purchaser. The parties have agreed that the Company’s auditors
will review the Net Asset Statement. The management of the Company expects the Aggregate
Consideration may vary as a result of an adjustment in the Net Asset Statement to include the
accumulated profits of the IT Business from 31 January, 2007 to 31 March, 2007 and any
revaluation amount on the properties held by the Sale Companies. Although the adjustment
mechanism has no limit and could result in a reduction in the Consideration, given the continued
profitability of the IT Business as reported in the Group’s interim results, and the short time
frame covered by the Net Asset Statement, we consider the risk to be reasonable.

For the period of time after the date of the Net Asset Statement up until completion, all
the revenues, incomes, liabilities and receivables resulting from the IT Business will belong to
the Purchaser. The long stop date for the fulfilment or waiver of the conditions of the Agreement
is 20 September, 2007. Therefore, the Company will forgo any profits or losses from the IT
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Business for up to a period of five months from the Cut-off Time to the long stop date.
However, this is mitigated by the requirement under the Agreement for the Purchaser to pay
the Company a refundable deposit of HK$56 million within three days of the Independent
Shareholders approving the Agreement. Such deposit will be refunded, without interest, in the
event that all the conditions to the Agreement are not fulfilled by 30 September, 2007 or such
later date as may be agreed between the Company and the Purchaser, in which case the
Agreement will lapse and the Disposal will not take effect.

Upon Completion, all amounts due from the Sale Companies to the Company will be
settled and all guarantees and letters of undertaking given by the Company in respect of the
obligations of the Sale Companies will be released. As at 31 January, 2007 the amount due
from the Sale Companies amount to approximately HK$35 million in aggregate. These amounts
are non-interest bearing sharcholder’s loans which we consider should be combined with the
Consideration amount to form the effective total consideration of the IT Business of
approximately HK$91 million, subject to adjustment upon Completion

Comparison of consideration with prevailing valuation of publicly traded companies in
Hong Kong

We have compared the valuation ratios implied by the consideration to be paid for the
Disposal with that of two groups of comparable Hong Kong listed companies as at 12 March,
2007, being the date of the Agreement. The first group comprises companies which engage
principally in the sale and distribution of computer related products. The second group comprises
companies which are engaged generally in wholesale distribution across various product
categories (list of wholesale comparables have not included in the table due to the large
number of companies).

Table 1: Comparable Hong Kong listed companies
Market Price to
capitalisation P/E book
(HK3$ millions)

Distribution of computer related products comparables

Automated Systems Holdings Limited 570.57 12.78 1.17
Inspur International Limited 308.58 12.00 2.56
SIS International Holdings Limited 290.03 3.33 0.51
Mobicon Group Limited 180.00 9.28 1.08
Artel Solutions Group Holdings Limited 59.20 n/a n/a
Shang Hua Holdings Limited 31.65 n/a 0.95
Number of companies 6 6
High 12.78 2.56
Low 3.33 0.51
Average 9.35 1.25
Median 10.64 1.08
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Market Price to
capitalisation P/E book
{HK$ millions)

Wholesale distribution comparables

Number of companies 51 51
High 89.75 25.00
Low 0.46 0.08
Average 15.17 393
Median 9.85 1.07

IT Business
— based on 31 March, 2006 unaudited profit

after tax and effective consideration amount 5.23 1.0
{note 1)

— based on 31 March, 2006 normalised unaudited
profit after tax and effective consideration amount 6.02 1.0
(note 1)

— based on 30 September, 2006 trailing 12 months
normalised unaudited profit after tax and

effective consideration amount 7.41 1.0
(note 1)

— based on 30 September, 2006 interim unaudited
profit after tax and effective consideration amount 8.37 1.0
(note 1)

Source: Bloomberg
Note:

L. Under the Agreement, the consideration amount will be adjusted to equal the Net Asset Statement as ar 31
March, 2007 thus the effective price to book radio is 1.

P/E multiple

Based on the unaudited profit after tax of the IT Business of approximately HK$17.4
million for the year ended 31 March, 2006, the effective consideration represents a price to
earnings multiple of 5.23 times. As noted above, an exchange gain of approximately HK$2.8
million was recorded in the 2006 financial accounts. Adjusting for this non recurring gain the
price to earnings multiple would increase to 6.02 times. The multiple would further increase
to 8.37 times based on the unaudited profit after tax of approximately HK$5.43 million for the
six months ended 30 September, 2006 of the IT Business. In comparison with the Hong Kong
listed computer related distributors, the price earnings multiple is sirnilar than that of the
average and median of the comparables. However, it should be noted that business activities
of the first group of comparable companies are some what dissimilar to the IT Business. The
main activity of the IT Business is the wholesale of computer and business machines at the
distributor level rather than at the retail level. Further, when compared to computer related
products distributors of a similar size to the IT Business we noted that all were loss making
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companies. Additionally, the profitability of the IT Business has been fluctuating dramatically
during the past five financial years. The historical effective price earnings multiples for the
financial years 2002 to 2005 ranged from approximately 40 times to 59 times. When compared
to Hong Kong listed companies operating in wholesale distribution in general the median
price earnings multiple of 9.85 times is similar to the effective multiple of 8.37 times, based
on the 2006 interim results.

Shareholders should note that CIHL is the only probable purchaser of the IT Business
as there are no distribution agreements between Toshiba and the Sale Companies and that the
distribution arrangements persist due to the long standing relationship between CIHL and the
Group with Toshiba. Accordingly, we consider that it would be unlikely that a purchaser other
than a member of the Chevalier Group of companies would be found for the IT Business.
Given the (i) the poor past performance of the IT Business; (ii) the non recurring exchange
gains in 2006; (iii) the decline in turnover and profit before tax of the IT Business reported for
the six months to 30 September, 2006 when compared to the same period the year prior; (iv)
the past track record of relatively low profit margins; and (v) the effective price earnings
multiple of 8.37 based on the 2006 interim results is similar to the median price to earnings
ratio of Hong Kong listed comparables and in any event within the low end of the range, we
consider the valuation to be reasonable.

Price to book ratio

The price to book ratio implied by the consideration price for the IT Business is one
times its net asset value and is the basis of calculation of the Consideration. The median price
to book ratio of listed computer related product distributors and wholesale distributors are
approximately 1.08 times and 1.07 times, respectively. The primary assets of the IT Business
are inventories, trade receivables and cash. As previously discussed, there are no formal
distribution agreements between the Company and its main supplier and accordingly a
significant premium above book value may not be justified, hence we consider the price to
book multiple to be reasonable.

Reasons for the Disposal

Following the acquisitions of Pacific Coffee and SEL, the Group has firmly established
itself as an operator of food and beverage businesses. The Disposal will transform the Group
into a single focused food and beverage operator, and enable the Shares valued as a pure food
and beverage business. The businesses of both Pacific Coffee and SEL have shown to be
consistently profitable over the three prior financial years. In comparison to the IT Business,
the Group’s food and beverage business have more expansion and growth opportunities and
are not constrained by distribution agreements or arrangements. Over the last five financial
years, the IT Business has experienced no sustained growth, with turnover remaining fairly
flat. In contrast, Pacific Coffee has expanded from 44 locations in 2005 to 57 locations in
2006 with expansion in Hong Kong, Singapore, Shanghai and Beijing. The brands of Pacific
Coffee and SEL are proprietary to the Group with the potential to grow in its current operating
markets, expand into new markets, and benefit from possible cost and operational synergies.
The Board intends to further develop the Group’s food and beverage business to grow both
organically and through investments in Hong Kong and neighbouring regions. As stated above
in the under the paragraphs headed “Background of the Group’s food and beverage businesses”,
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the second tranche of the SEL consideration has yet to be paid. The HK$91 million could be
used to pay the second tranche of the SEL consideration and, or, repay bank loans related to
the acquisition of Pacific Coffee, thereby funding the Group’s new business direction and, or
reducing the debt of the Group. We consider the reasons for the Disposal ta be in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Financial effects of the Disposal
Earnings

Following the completion of the Disposal, the economic benefits of the IT Business will
no longer belong to the Group. Shareholders should note that for the year ended 31 March,
20006, contributions from the 1T Business represented half of the profit of the Group. If the
Disposal is approved and completed, the profitability of the Group may decrease significantly.
Although the recent expansion of the Group’s food and beverage operations, by the acquisition
of SEL, may counter balance such profit reductions, given the continued profitability of SEL.
For the year ended 31 December, 2005, the SEL group reported net profits of approximately
HK$8.3 million.

The Group expects to record a gain on the Disposal of approximately HKS$6 million.
Net asset value

The Aggregate Consideration is based on the Net Asset Statement as at 31 March, 2007,
Hence the Disposal and Aggregate Consideration should result in an increase of approximalely
HK$6 million in the net asset value of the Group.

RECOMMENDATION

Having considered the above principal factors and reasons, we consider that the Disposal,
although not in the ordinary and usual course of business, is on normal ccmmercial terms, fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Sharehoiders as a whole.
Accordingly, we recommend that the Independent Shareholders vote in favour of the ordinary
resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the Disposal and that the Independent Board
Committee advises the Independent Shareholders accordingly.

Yours faithfully,
for and on behalf of
Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited
Dennis Cassidy
Director
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1. AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR
THE TWO YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2006
were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and the report from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in
relation thereto did not contain any qualified opinion.

The following is the reproduction of the text of the audited consolidated firancial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2006 contained in pages 27 to 70 of the
Company’s 2006 annual report:

“Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$’000 HK3'000
(Restated)
Turnover 7 831,745 687,108
Cost of sales (621,790) (626,233)
Gross profit 209,955 60,875
Other income 8 10,888 1,744
Selling and distribution costs (159,980) (52,884)
Administrative expenses (7,470) (4,595)
Other expenses (8,659) (2,421)
Share of result of an associate - (826)
Finance costs 9 (3,906) (n
Profit before taxation 10 40,828 1,892
Income tax expenses I (3,862) (339)
Profit for the year 36,966 1,553

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 36,966 1,553
Minority interests - -

36,966 1,553

Dividends 12
Interim, paid 5,141 1,714
Final, proposed 8,568 1,713
Earnings per share 13 21.57 HK cents 0.91 HK cents
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
Nates HK$'000 HK 3000
(Restated)

Non-current assets
Investment properties 14 7,120 5,160
Property, plant and equipment 15 55,895 24,518
Prepaid lease payments 16 2,192 4,115
Goodwill 17 82,392 —_
Trademark 18 148,000 —_
Interest in an associate 19 — —
Amount due from an associate 20 — 379
Available-for-sale investments 21 10,020 —
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 22 49,588 —
Investments in securities 23 — 4,440
315,207 38,612

Current assets

Inventories 24 €6,991 55,262
Properties for sale, at cost —_ 1,135
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 25 100,164 70,956
Amount due from ultimate holding company 26 1,756 711
Amounts due from customers for coniract work 27 342 939
Tax recoverable 662 574
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 22 73,279 —
Investments in securities 23 — 110,815
Derivative financial instruments 28 32 —
Bank balances and cash equivalents 29 72,399 181,451
315,625 421,843

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 30 75,164 59,662
Bills payable 30 1,881 695
Amounts due to customers for contract work 27 264 199
Deferred service income 20,420 20,751
Provision for taxation 942 411
Bank borrowings 31 52,000 121
150,671 81,839
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2006 2005
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
{Restated)
Net current assets 164,954 340,004
Total assets less current liabilities 480,161 378,616
Capital and reserves
Share capital 32 85,678 85,678
Reserves 325,422 292,683
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 411,100 378,361
Minority interests 176 175
Total equity 411,276 378,536
Non-Current liabilities
Bank borrowings 31 49,000 —
Deferred taxation 33 19,885 80
68,885 80
Total equity and non-current liabilities 480,161 378,616
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital Properties  Exchange
Share Share  Capital redemption revaloation Muctoation  Retained Minority
capital  premiam reserve reserve  Teserve reserve profits Total  interests Total
HES000  HES'000  HES'000  AKS'O00  HEY'000  HKS000  HES000  HES000  HKS'00  HES00

At st April, 2004 as
originally stated §5.618 2344 18231 4 L 1036 549 385386 4 3880
Effect of changes in
accounting policies
{see Note 3] - — -

(2.764) 668 2210 4 - 14

At Tst April, 2004 a
Testated B5618 143 18,231 i - 1704 649 38710 4 383884

Exchange difference arising

on translation of

financial statements

of foreign operations

direetly recognised

in equity - - - - - (#n - (3h | {46)
Profit for the year as

restated — — - - - - 1,533 1553 - 1583

Total recognised income

and expense for the year (4N 1553 L5306 | 1.507

|
[
|
|
|

Final dividend of

2004 paid - - - — - - (5.141) (5,141) - (5,141
Inierim dividend of

2005 paid - - - - - - (L1 {L.714) - (1.14)

At 3(st March, 2005 f5678 14 13,231 14 - 1657 PRI 175 178,336
Effect of changes in

accounting pelicies

{see Note 3 -

(171) - - - 3085 194 - 291

Al Ist April, 2005 as
restated §5.678 12344 18,060 14 - 1,657 51432 MBLNS 175 381450

Exchange difference arising

on translation of

financial statements of

foreign operations

directly recognised

in equity - - - - - (287} - (287) ] (286)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 16,966 36.966 — 16,966

Total recognised ircome

and expense for the year (281 36966 36679 I 36,680

Final dividend of 2005 paid
Interim dividend of
1006 pud - - - - - - (3.4} (314 - {(5.141})

ny any - (1,13

At 315t Macch, 2006 85678 213434 18,060 14 — 1,370 §2544 411000 176 411,276
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

2006 2005
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
(Restated)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 40,828 1,892
Adjustments for:

Share of result of an associate — 826
Interest income (1,653) (269)
Interest expenses 3,906 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15,801 4,346
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 251 253
Allowance for doubtful debts (written back)
provided (1,736) 955
{Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (351 450
Written-down of inventories 1,000 518
Impairment loss on investment securities — 560
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments 2,466 —
Decrease in fair value of derivative financial
instruments 2,882 —
Impairment loss on amount due form an
associate 1,745 —
Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid lease
payments (107) —
Increase in fair value of investment properties (190) —
Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 64,842 9,532
(Increase) decrease in inventories (8,475) 11,430
(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits and
prepayments (9,781) 5,305
Decrease of properties for sale 1,135 —
Increase in investments at fair vaiue through
profit or loss (12,052) —
Decrease {increase) in amounts due from
customers for contract work 597 (501
Decrease in investments in securitics — 41,954
Increase (decrease) in bills payable 1,186 (1,026)
Increase (decrease) in creditors, deposits and
accruals 4,120 (6,720
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to customers
for contract work 65 (1,123)
{Decrease) increase in deferred service income (394) 2,085
Increase in amount due from
ultimate holding company (1,045) (466)
Exchange difference 117 (394)
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2006 2005
Notes HK3'000 HK3'000
(Restated)
Cash from operations 40,315 60,076
Profits tax paid {6,636) (1,184)
Profits tax refunded 374 237
Interest paid (3,506) (1)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 30,147 59,128
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 1,280 269
(Advance to) repayment from an associate (1,366) 1,034
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (24,490) (6.063)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 4,065 1,600
Purchase of available-for-sale investments (8,046) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries 34 (204,531) —
Withdrawal of fixed deposit — 7.800
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (233,088) 4,640
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (6,854) (6,855)
New bank loans raised 143,000 —
Repayments of bank loans (39,000) _
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 94,146 (6,855)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
cquivalents (108,795 56,913
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 181,330 124,335
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (136) 82
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 72,399 181,330
Analysis of the balance of cash and cash
equivalents
Bank balances and cash equivalents 72,399 181,451
Bank overdrafts — (121)
72,399 181,330
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March, 2006

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information™ section to the annual report. The Company's ultimate holding company is Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (“CIHL", a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. Both CIHL's
and the Company's shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while the activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out on pages 71 and 72.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS/CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™). Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs™) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs” issued by the Hong Kong Institnte of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the presentation of the consolidated
income statement, consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of changes in equity. In particular,
the presentation of minority interests has been changed. The changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectlively, The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting
policies in the following areas that have an effect on how the results for the current and/or prior accounting
years are prepared and presented:

Business combinations

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations™ to business combinations for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January. 2005 and the relevant transitional provision in
HKFRS for business combinations occurred to 1st January, 2005. The principal effects of the
application of HKFRS 3 to the Group are summarised below:

Goodwill and discount on acquisition

Discount on acquisition {previously known as negative goodwill) and goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1st April. 2001 was held in reserves. [n accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions in HKFRS 3, the Group derecognised all negative goodwill on acquisition amounting to
HK$198.000 and goodwill amounting to HK$27,000 on st April, 2005, previously recorded in the
capital reserve, and transferred them to the Group's retained profits on st April, 2005,

As a result of the application of HKFRS 3, the capital reserve as at 1st April. 2005 has been
decreased by HK$171,000 while the retained profits as at 1st April, 2005 have been increased by
the same amount,

Investment properties

In the current year, the Group has, for the first time, applied HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
The Group has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment properties which
requires gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties to be
recognised directly in the profit or loss for the year in which they arise. In previous years, investment
properties under predecessor accounting standard were measured at open market value, with
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revaluation surplus or deficits credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve
unless the balance on this reserve was insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case
the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve was charged to the income statement. Where a decrease had previously been charged 1o the
income statement and revaluation subsequently arose, that increase was credited to the income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. The Group has applied HKAS 40
retrospectively, The application of HKAS 40 has had no material effects on the results for the prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required. The financial impact
for the current year is set out in note 3.

Owner-occupied leasehold interest in land

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings 'were included in property,
plant and equipment and measured using the revaluation medel. In the current year, the Group has
applied HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under HKAS 17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification, unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings elzments, in which case, the
entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease
payments between the land and buildings elements can be made reliably, the leasehold interests in
land are reclassified 1o prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are carried at cost and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. This change in accounting policy has been
applied retrospectively and the financial impact is set out in note 3.

Properties held for own use

In previous years, properties held for own use were stated at their revalued amount, being
the fair value on the basis of their existing use at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations were performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount did not differ mazerially from that would be
determined using fair values at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation
of such properties was credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reversed a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase was credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the revaluation of a property was dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any. on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that property.

Because the revaluation increase or decrease recognised in prior years were mainly
attributable to leasehold land, the management considered it is more appropriate to use the cost
model to account for the building after separation of the leasehold land upon the adoption of HKAS
17 as discussed above. Accordingly, the buildings are carried at their cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses after recognition. This change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively and the financial impact is set ous in note 3.

Deferred taxes related to investment properties

In previous years, deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued investment properties
were assessed on the basis of the tax consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying
amount of the properties through sale in accordance with the predecesser Interpretation. In the
current year, the Group has applied HK(SIC) Interpretation 21 “Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets” which removes the presumption that the carrying amount of
investment properties is to be recovered through sale. Therefore, the deferred tax consequences of
the investment properties are now assessed on the basis that reflect the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects to recover the value of the property at each
balance sheet date. In the absence of any specific transitional provisions in HK(SIC) Inierpretation
21, this change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. However, the application of
HEK(SIC) Interpretation 21 has had no material effects on the results for the current or prior accounting
periods. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.
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Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement™. HKAS 32
requires retrospective application. HKAS 39, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January, 2005, generally does not permit the recognition, derecognition or measurement of
financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The application of HKAS 32 has had no
material impact on how financial instruments of the Group are presented for current and prior
accounting periods. The principal effects resulting from the implementation of HKAS 39 are
summarised below:

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 39 with respect to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope
of HKAS 39.

By 31st March, 2005, the Group classified and measured its investments in debt and equity
securities in accordance with the benchmark treatment of Statement of Siandard Accounting Practice
24 (“SSAP 247). Under SSAP 24, the Group’s investments in debt or equity securities were classified
as “investment securities” or “other investments” as appropriate. Investment securities were carried
at cost less impairment losses while other investments were measured at fair value with unrealised
gains or losses included in profit or loss for the period in which gains or losses arose. From st
April, 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its investments in debt and equity
securities as “investments at fair value through profit or loss” or “available-for-sale investments” in
accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, “investments at fair value through profit or loss™ and
“available-for-sale investments™ are carried at fair value, with changes in fair values recognised in
profit or loss and equity respectively. Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have guoted
market prices in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less impairment loss after initial recognition.

On 1st April, 2005, the Group classified and measured its investments in debt and equity
securities in accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 39. As a result, the investments
held for trading amounting to HK$110,815,000 were reclassified as financial asseis at fair value
through profit or less and invesiment in unlisted equity securities amounted to HK$4,400,000 were
reclassified to available-for-sale investments at 1st April, 2005 as disclosed in note 3.

Financial assets and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securities

From 1st April, 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its financial assets
and financial liabilities other than debt and equity securities which were previously outside the
scope of SSAP 24 in accordance with the requirements of HKAS 39. Financial assets of the Group
under HKAS 39 are classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™, “available-
for-sale financial assets™ or “loans and receivables”. Financial habilities are generally classified as
“financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” or "other financial liabilities”. The Group's
financial liabilities comprise “other financial liabilities” which are carried at amortised cost vsing
the effective interest method after initial recognition. The Group has applied the relevant transitional
provision in HKAS 39. However, there has been no material effect on how the results for the
current accounting period are prepared and presented.

Derivatives

By 31st March, 2003, the derivative financial insiruments had not been recognised on the
balance sheet. From 1st April, 2005 onwards, all derivatives that are within the scope of HKAS 39
are required to be carried at fair value at each balance sheet date regardless of whether they are
deemed as held for trading or designated as effective hedging instruments. Under HKAS 39,
derivatives including embedded derivatives which should be separately accounted for from the non-
derivaive host contracts are deemed as held-for-trading financial assets or financial liabilities,
unless they qualify and are designated as effective hedging instruments. Fair values of derivatives
deemed as held for trading are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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The Group has not recognised the derivative financial instrumants on the balance sheet
prior to 315t March, 2005. The Group has applied the relevant transittonal provisions in HKAS 39,
On st April, 2005, the Group recognised the fair value of the derivative financial instrument,
foreign currency forward contract deemed as held-for-trading financial assets, amounting to
HK$2,914,000, on the balance sheet and a corresponding adjustment to the Group's retained earnings.
The financial impact on application of the standard has decreased the profit for the current year by
HK$2,882,000.

New accounting standards not yet applied

The Group has not early applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations. Other than the adoption
of HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 {Amendments) “Financial guarantee contracts”, the Directors of the
Company so far concluded that the application of these new standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group. HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
{Amendments) “Financial guarantee contracis” require financial guarantee contracts which are within
the scope of HKAS 39 to be measured at fair value upon initial recognitron. The Group is siill not
in the position 1o reasonably estimate the impact that may arise from HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4

(Amendments).

HKAS | (Amendment) Capital disclosures!

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial gains and losses, group plans and disclosures?

HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net investment in a foreign operation?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions?

HKAS 39 (Amendment) The fair value option?

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Financial guaraniee conlracts?

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources?

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures’

HK(IFRIC) — INT 4 Determining whether an arrangzment contains a lease?

HK(IFRICY) — INT 5 Rights 1o interests arising from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental rehabilitation funds®

HK(IFRIC) — INT 6 Liabilities arising from participating in a specific market-
waste electrical and electronic equipment®

HK(IFRIC) — INT 7 Applying the restatement approach under HKAS 29
financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies*

HK(IFRIC) — INT 8 Scope of HKFRS 2¢

HK([FRIC) — INT ¢ Reassessment of embedded derivatives®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after st January, 2007.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2006.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st December, 2005.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st March, 2005.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after tst May, 2006,
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006.
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3.

SUMMARY OF THE

EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The effects of the changes in the accounting poiicies described in note 2 on the results for the
current and prior years (included in other expenses) are as follows:

Non-amortisation of goodwill

2006 20058
HK$'000 HK3 000
3,391 —

Decrease in depreciation arising from adoption of cost model
of owner-occupied buildings 94 82
Decrease in valuation of properties for own use arising from

adoption of cost model of owner-occupied buildings — (2,293)
Decrease in fair value of derivative financial instruments (2,882) —
Decrease in fair value of investments at fair value through

profit or loss (4,730) —
Gains arising from changes in fair value of invesiment properties 190 —
Decrease in profit for the year (3,937) (2,211}

The cumulative effects of the application of the new HKFRSs on 31st March, 2005 and [st April,
2005 are summarised below:

Balance sheet items

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investments in securities

Available-for-sale investments

Derivative financial instrumenls

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Total effects on assets and
lizbilities

Retzined profils

Capital reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve
Properties revaluation reserve
Minority interests

Total effects on equity

Asal Retrospective Prospective
31st March, adjustments Asal adjustments Asat
005 HKAS 16 31st March, Ist April,
(originally and pilli] 2005
stated) HKAS 1 HKAS 17 (Restated) HKFRS 3 HKAS 39 (Reslated)
HE'000 HK'000 HK'060 HE 000 HK'006 HK'000 HE 000
31,405 - (6,887} 24,518 - — 4518
- - 4115 4,115 - - 4115
115,255 - - 115,255 - (115,255} -
- - — - — 4,440 4440
- - - - - 2914 2914
- - - — — 110,815 110,815
146,660 — (2,772} 143,888 — 1914 146,802
49,333 - 9 49.347 171 2914 52432
18,231 - - 18.231 (a7 — 18,060
989 - 668 1.657 - — 1,657
1449 - (3,449} - - — —
- i73 - 175 — — 175
12007 175 (2.772) 69.410 — 2914 1134
175 (175) — — — — _

Minority interests
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The financial effects of the application of the new HKFRSs to the Group's equity on st April,

2004 are summarised below:

4.

As
originally Adjustments
stated HKAS 1 HKAS 17  As restated

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

Retained profits 52,429 — 2,220 54,649
Exchange tluctuation reserve 1,036 — 668 1,704
Properties revaluation reserve 2,764 — (2,764) —
Minority interests — 174 — 174
Total effects on equity 56,229 174 124 56,527

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention except

for investment properties and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition. the consolidated firancial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rule Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the minerity in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

(b) Goodwill

Gaoodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associale for which the agreement
date is on or after 1st January, 2005, representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to
each of the relevant cash-generating unit ("CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU 1o which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

(e} Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for postacquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which inciudes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate}, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

(d) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are inittally measured at fair value. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or the financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two sub-categories,
including financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active marketl. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and reccivables including debtors,
amounts due from ultimate holding company and amount due from customers for
contract work are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
assel at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale invesiments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as investments at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and held to maturity investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Any impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
reverse through profit or loss in subsequent periods. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any idemified impairment losses
at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not reverse in subsequent periods.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
other short-term highly tiquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

Other than derivatives which are deemed as financial liabilities held for trading, the

Group’s financial liabilities mainly include creditors, bills payable and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective intsrest rate method.

(iii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded al the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.
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(iv)  Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments {primarily foreign currency forward
contracts) to reduce its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Derivative financial
instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as financial assets held
for trading or financial liabilities held for trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives
are recognised directly in profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host coniracts are separated from the relevant
host contracts and deemed as held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of the host contracts, and the
combined contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all other
circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated and are accounted for together with
the host contracts in accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group needs 1o
separate an embedded derivative but is unable to measure the embedded derivative, the
entire combined contracts are treated as held-for-trading.

(e) Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

n Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method or reducing balance method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

The property. plant and equipment are depreciated on the following methods, after taking
into account their estimated residual value at the following rates per annum:

Straight-line method:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 20-50 years
Store machine 20%

Store and other equipment Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or 10%

Reducing balance method:

Initial
charge upon Annual
purchase charge
Machinery. toels and equipment 20% 40%
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles 20% 20%

— 4] —




APPENDIX 1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

(g) Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premium paid for use of land. Prepaid lease payment
is charged to income statement over the term of relevant land leases on a straightline basis.

(h) Trademarks

On recognition. trademarks acquired from business combinations are recognised at fair
value. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of trademarks are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment by comparing the carrying
amount of the trademarks with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of a trademark is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount. the carrying amount of the trademark is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the trademark is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

(i) Properties for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
the cost of acquisition of properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is estimated by
management based on prevailing market conditions or when a binding sales agreement is executed,
by reference to the agreed selling prices.

) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valuz. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

(k) Installation contracts

Where the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs
arc recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date, as measured by the propoertion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the estimated total contract costs, except where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue
is recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as “amounts due from customers for contract work”. For
contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is shown as “amounts due to customers for contract work™. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the balance sheet, as a liability, as
advances received. Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included
in the balance sheet under “debtors, deposits and prepayments”.
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n Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount,

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a binding sales agreement.
{m) Operating lease

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets remain with
the lessors are accounted for as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income statement on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
10 enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

{n) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as finance costs and included in profit or loss in peried
in which they are incurred.

(o) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in the
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of that entity are recorded in its functional
currency at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group's net investment in a
foreign operation. in which case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statemenss, the assets and liabilities
of the Group's foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars, the presentation currency
of the Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any. are recognised in the translation reserve.
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

p) Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(q) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductibie in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred 1ax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group as a parent is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or pan of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates 1o items charged or credited directly to equity. in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.

(r} Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
which have an indefinite life to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount. the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset except
for goodwill s increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately. [mpairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
period. The accounting policies for impairment of goodwill and trademark are set out in details in
their respective policies.

S. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debis of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inveatory
items that are identified as no longer salable. The management estimates the net realisable value of
its trading merchandise based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis at each balance sheet date
and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Impairment of goodwill and trademark

In determining whether goodwill and trademark are impaired, an estimation of the value-in-
use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and trademark have been allocated is required.
The value-in-vse calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit with a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No
impairment loss has been identified for the goodwill and trademark with carrying amounts
HK$82,392.000 and HK$108,000.,000 respectively as at 31st March, 2006.

Details of the impairment testing on goodwill and trademark are set cut in note 37.
Income tax

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$478,703,000 due
to the unpredictability future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. [n cases where the actual future profits generated are more or less than expected,
additional recognition or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise. which would be recognised in
the income statement for the period in which it takes place.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial assets and liabilities include trade and other debtors, amount due from
ultimate holding company, bank balances and cash, trade and other creditors, bills payable, bank borrowings
and investments. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures (o ensure Appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet. The management of the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual wrade debt at each balance sheet date 1o ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the management
of the Group is responsible to determine credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the
Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of its trade debtors, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on bank deposits and investment in financial instcuments is limited because
the counterparties are banks, financial institutions or corporations with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

Certain trade payables of the Group are denominated in foreizn currencies. In order to
reduce the risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations, the Group has entered inte foreign
currency forward contracts against its exposures to changes of foreign exchange rate. However, as
these foreign currency forward contracts do not qualify for hedging accounting, they are deemed as
financial assets or liabilities held for trading. The management will continue 1o monitor foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significam foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk mainly relates to floating-rate bank borrowings,
investments in debt securities at floating rates and structured deposits linked with constant maturity
swap rate or LIBOR. The management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

(iii)  Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity and debt security price risk through its investments in
equity securities. The management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management and flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient cash and cash equivalent, readily realisable marketable securities and to have
committed short-term and medium-term credit lines available.

The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted
general credit facilities from banks for financing capital commitments in the near future and for
working capital purposes.
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7.

10,

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amount received and receivable for goods sold, provision of services
and investment income during the year and is analysed as follows:

2006 2005

HK$'000 HK$'000

Sale of computer and business and coffee machines 477,493 474,243
Sale of food and beverage 173,208 —
Provision of maintenance services 71.779 100,617
Trading of securities 94,311 101,988
Interest income from debt securities and structured deposits 8,954 10,260
831,745 687.108

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business and geographical segmenis is set out in note 35.

OTHER INCOME

20006 2005
HK3'000 HK$'000
Included in other income are:
Interest from bank deposits 1,653 269
Exchange gain 2,754 971
Profit on disposal of properties for sale 4,392 —
Gross rental income from properties of HK$715,000
(2005: HK$383,000) less outgoings 418 275
FINANCE COSTS
The amount represents interest on bank loans repayable within 5 years.
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK$'000
{Restated)
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
Allowance of amount due from an associate 1,745 —
(Written back) allowance for bad and doubtful debis (1,736) 955
Amortisation of prepaid lease paymenits 251 253
Auditors’ remuneration 1.086 830
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 2,882 -
Realised and unrealised fair value loss of investments at fair value
through profit or loss 729 8.271
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 15,801 4,346
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (351} 450
Impairment loss recognised in respect of available-for-sale
investments 2,466 —
Increase in fair value of investment properties (190} —
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises 46,885 8,457
Reversal of impairment loss on prepaid lease payments transferred to
investment properties (107) —
Staff costs {note) 112,221 78,763
Write-down of inventorigs 1,000 518
Gross earnings from leasing of assets other than properties of
HK$5,114,000 (2005: HK$4,795.000) less outgoings (1,659) (4.358)
Note: Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 36. Redundancy

payments of HK$6,000 (2005: HK$729,000) are included in staff costs.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK3'000

The charge {credit) comprises:

Current tax

Hong Kong 3,263 228
Overseas 3i8 410
3,581 638

Deferred taxation (note 33) 281 (299)
3,862 339

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward.

Provision Tor overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local
legislation on the estimated assessable profits.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled from the profit before taxation per the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Profit before taxation 40,828 1,892
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% (note) 7.145 331
Tax effect of share of result of an associate —_— 145
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses for tax purposes 4,149 1,935
Tax effect of non-taxable income for tax purposes {2,962) (2,208)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,053 2,368
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised {4,886) (1,468)
Tax effect on utilisation of temporary differences not recognised (906) (909
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised 471 —
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions (L15) 139
Others (87 6
Tax charge for the year 3,862 339

Note: The domestic income tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is
substantially based.

12, DIVIDENDS

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Dividend paid:
— Interim dividend of HK$0.03
(2005: HK$%0.01} per ordinary share 5,141 1,714

Dividend proposed:
— Proposed final dividend of HK$0.05
(2005: HK$0.01) per ordinary share 8,568 1,713

A final dividend of HK$0.05 (2005: HK$0.01) per share has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to the approval by the shareholders in general meeting.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the Group's net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$36.966,000 (2005: HK$1,553,000) and on 171,355,871 (2005: 171,355,871)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company has no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the two years ended 31s1 March, 2006.

The impact on the previously reported basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2005
as a result of changes in accounting policies as stated in note 3 is as follows:

HK cents
Reported figure before adjustments 2.20
Adjustments arising from changes in accounting policies (1.29)
Restated figure 0.91

The impact on the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March, 2006 due to the change
in accounting policies as stated in note 3 is a decrease in earnings of 2.30 HK cents per share.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$000

Fair value at Ist April, 5,160 3.160
Transferred from property, plant and equipment 1,770 —
Increase in fair value 190 —
Fair value at 31st March, 7.120 5,160

The Group's investment properties are situated in the Mainland China under medium-term leases.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31st March, 2006 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Messrs. DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Messrs. DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
are members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors {(“HKIS™), and have appropriate qualifications and
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms
to the Valuation Standards on Properties of the HKI1S, was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.
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15, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Overseas Furniture, fixtures
properties office equipment
on  Machirery,  Store und and motor vekictes
Leasehold freehold tools and other Store  forown
tand  Buildings land equipment equipment  machine use  for Tease Total
HES000  HES'000  HKS'000  RRS'000  HKS(O00  HKSO0  RKSO0 HESOOD  HRS000
COsT
AL 151 Apat, 2004 a5
originalty stated 4368 4259 8,363 13,139 — - 16,480 7,700 5451
(pening balznce adjustments
of revaluation surplus - 1181 1,210 - - — - - 3,051
Reclassification to prepaid
lease payments (4.368) - - - - - - - {4.368)
Ar 1st April, 2004 as resiated - 6,046 9.835 13.139 - - 16,480 1100 53,200
Exchange adjustments - 1l o 3 - - H 1 175
Additions - - — 463 - - 519 500 6.063
Disposals - (630) - {3,869) - - (4.069) (876) {9.434)
At 31t March, 2005 - bV 9,894 6,761 - - 12,991 11916 46.994
Exchange adjustments - H 35 13 130 51 3 12 288
Reclassification to investment
praperties - (80 — - - - - - {841)
Acquired on acquisition of
subsidiaries - - - 0098 5,980 - 90 6,168
Additions - - 560 10992 350 1% g XL
Disposals - (680) - (1,236) {2.580) (353} (1,091) {3,136} (8.196)
At 315t March, 2006 - 3930 934 078 28940 9,578 12,049 17,194 91.363
ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
AL Lst April, 2004 as
originally stated - - - 10878 - - 12,642 1949 15460
Opening balance adjustments - 14 1516 - - — — - 195
At Ist April, 2004 as restated - 1417 1516 10878 - — 12,442 1549 %402
Exchange adjusiments - ] 10 kAl - - 50 U 122
Provided for the year - 182 14 1,004 - — 946 1090 4346
Eliminated on disposals - - - {353) - - (3651 (219) (1394}
At 31st March, 2005 - 1603 1430 B394 - - 9,936 181 15476
Exchange adjustments - 7 ¢ fAl - - 30 N N
Reclassification to investment
properties - {151) - - - - - - (151}
Provided for the year - 132 14 833 3.4 2230 T4 3504 13,80
Eliminated on disposals - (113) - (1.101) (1,ng) {55} {9513 (1614) {5,810}
At 315t March, 2006 - 1530 1,780 8,181 6.496 m 91 5,695 35408
CARRYING VALUES
At 3151 March, 2006 — 2400 3,134 927 13,484 7,601 10 12,099 55,895
At 315t March, 2003 — 381 3.249 1367 -~ — 1,003 8,075 M58
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2006 2005
HK3'000 HK§'000

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land in Hong Kong under medium-term lease 1,490 2417

Leasehold land in Mainland China under
Long-term lease 642 654
Medium-term lease — 973
Overseas leasehold land under short-term lease 60 71
2,192 4,115

17. GOODWILL

HK§'000
At Ist April, 2004 and 2005 —
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries 82,392
At 31st March, 2006 82,392

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note 37.
18. TRADEMARK

The trademark was purchased as part of a business combination as detailed in note 34 during the
year. The trademark is legally having a life of certain periods but is renewable at minimal cost. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark continuously and has the ability to
do so. Various studies including market trends and competitability of similar food and beverage market
have been performed by management of the Group, which supports that the trademark has no foreseeable
time limit over which the branded coffee shops are expected to generate cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademark is considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life. The trademark will not be amortised wuntil its useful life is determined to be finite upon
reassessment of its useful life annually by the management. Instead it will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of impairment testing are
disclosed in note 37.

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

2006 2005
HK3$ 000 HK3'000

Cost of investment in an unlisted associale 105 105
Share of post-acquisition losses (105) (105)
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As at 31st March, 2006, the Group had interest in the following associate:

Effective
percentage of
Form of Country of registered
business incorporation capital held
Name structure and operation by the Group Principal activities
%5
Guangzhou Chevalier Corporate Mainland 24 Trading of office
iTech Limited China equipment and
provision of
maintenance
services

The summarised financial information in respect of the associate is set out below:

2006 2005
HK§' 000 HK$'000

Total assets 832 1,040
Total liabilities (4,282) {4,361)
Net liabilities (3,450} (3,321)
Revenue 1,633 26,114
Loss for the year (58) (3.452)

Group’'s share of net assets of the associate — —

Group's share of loss of the associate for the year — (826)

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss of the associate. The amount of
unrecognised share of loss for the year and accumulated unrecognised share of losses of the associate
amounted to HK$ 14,000 and HK$828,000 (2005: HK$2.000 and HK$797,000) respectively.

20. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK3'000

Amount due from an associate 3,258 1,513
Less: allowance for doubtful amount (3,258) (1,134)
— 379

The amount due from an associate was unsecured, interest free and not expected to be repaid within
twelve months after the balance sheet date.
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21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 3ist March, 2006 comprise the followings:

HK$'000

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less impairment 2,270
Investment in a venture capital fund, at fair value 7.750
10,020

Unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The fair value of investments in a venture capital
fund was calculated based on the Group’s attributable interest in the fair value of the fund’s net assets.

22. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

[nvestments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31st March, 2006 comprise the following:

HK$ 000
Held for trading:

Equity securities, listed overseas 4,553
Debt securities listed overseas 31,430
Debt securities, unlisted 37,296
73,279

Designated as investments at fair value through profit or loss:
Structiured deposits 49,588

122,867
—

Represented by:

Non-current assets 49,588
Current assets 73.279
122,867

The fair values of the above investments are determined either based on the quoted market bid price
availuble on the relevant exchange or the market prices provided by the relevant financial institutions.

The above structured deposits are denominated in United States Dollars with fixed inierest rates for

the first year and the remaining years with interest rates linked with either constant maturity swap rate or
LIBOR.
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23, INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Investments in securities as at 31st March, 2005 are set out below. Upon the application of HKAS
39 on Ist April, 2005, investments in securities were reclassified o appropriate categories under HKAS 39.
Accordingly, an amount of HK$4,440,000 and HK$110,815,000 were reclassified to available-for-sale
investments and investments at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

HK$'000
Invesiment securities:
Equity securities, unlisted 4,440
Other investments:
Equity securities at market value, listed in Hong Kong 267
Debt securities at market value, listed overseas 5,838
Debt securities, unlisted 85.355
Mutual funds, unlisted 19.355

115,255
——

Carrying values analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets 4.440
Current assets 110,815

115,255
——

24, INVENTORIES

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK3$'000

Inventories held for resale 57.580 50,156
Consumable stores 9411 5,106
66,991 55,262

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was HK$424.540,000 (2005:
HK$381,115,000).

A reversal of previous write-down of inventories of HK$7.631,000 (2005: HK$3,601,000) has been
realised on sales of these inventories during the year.

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The
average credit period granted to the customers is 60 days except or sales for food and beverage at coffee
shops which are mainly on cash basis. The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors net of allowance
of doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK3'000

0 — 60 days 49 348 47,891
61 — 90 days 2,533 1,871
Over 50 days 4,745 2,654

56,626 52,416

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other debtors approximate o their fair values.
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26. AMOUNT DUE FROM ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due from ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The Directors consider that its carrying amount approximates to its fair value,

27. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK§'000

Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:

Contract costs incurred 40,449 48 626
Recognised profits less losses 127 (6,492)
40,576 42,134

Progress billings (40,498) {41,394)
78 740

Represented by:

Amounts due from customers included in current assets 342 939
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities (264) (199)
78 740

At 31st March, 2006, retentions held by customers for contract work and advance payments received
from customers for contract work amounted to HK$42,000 (2005: HK$2,305,000) and HK$162,000 (2005:
Nil) respectively.

28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the year, the Group has used foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against certain of
its trade payables that were denominated in foreign currencies. These derivatives are not qualified for
hedge accounting.

At 31st March, 2006, the Group had entered into foreign currency forward contracts denominated in
United States dollars with total notional amount of HK$58,200,000 (2005: HK$234,392,000).

All derivatives of the Group are measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. Their fair values
are determined based on the market prices for equivalent instruments quoted by the counterparties at the
balance sheet date and from the financial models based on principal sum and estimate about future market
conditions.

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits carrying interest at prevatling
market rate. The Directors consider that the carrying values of the amounts at the balance sheet date
approximate to their fair values.

Include in bank balances and cash is an amount of HK$29,720,000 (2005: HK$49,061,000)
denominated in United States Dollars.
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30.

date:

CREDITORS AND BILLS PAYABLE

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade creditors and bills payable at the balance sheet

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$§'000

0 — 60 days 31,166 20,901
61 — 90 days 333 1,445
Over 90 days 2,917 2,210
Trade creditors and bills payable 34,416 24,556

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other creditors and bills payable approximate to

their fair vaiues.

L

BANK BORROWINGS

2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Bank overdraft — 121
Bank loans 101,000 —

101,000 121

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within one year 52,000 121
Moare than | year but not exceeding 2 years 12.000 —
More than 2 years but not exceeding § years 37,000 —
101,000 121
Less: amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities (52.000) (121)
49,000 —

The bank borrowings were unsecured, carried floating interest rate at HIBOR plus certain margin

per annum. The average effective interest rate for the current year was 4.3% per annum.

32.

The fair values of the bank borrowings approximate to their carrying arnounts.

SHARE CAPITAL

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$ 000

Authorised:
240.000,000 (2005: 240,000,000) ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 (2005: HK$0.50) each 120,000 120.000

Issued and fully paid:
171,355,871 (2005: 171,355,871) ordinary shares
of HK$0.50 (2005: HK$0.50) each 85,678 85,678
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33. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon
during the year:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Trademark Others Total
HK3$° 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'600

At 1st April, 2004 336 (107) — (50) 379
Charge (credit) to income

far the year 388 (651) — (36) (299)
At 3lst March, 2005 924 (758) — (86) 80
Arising from acquisition

of subsidiaries 835 211y 18,900 —_ 19,524
Charge (credit) to income

for the year 44] (200} — 40 281
At 31st March, 2006 2,200 (1,169} 18,900 (46) 19,885

At 31st March, 2006, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused
tax losses of HK$478,703,000 (2005: HK$500,605.000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$761,000 (2005: HK$2,318,000) that will expire in
2011. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31st March, 2006, the Group had deductible temporary difference of HK$26,148,000 (2005:
HK$28.633.000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 20th May. 2005, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited (“Pacific Coffee™) at a consideration of HK$205,963.000. The acquisiticn has been accounted for
using the purchase method.

The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising from the acquisition are as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying Fair value Fair value
amount adjustments of net assets

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$ 000

Net assets acquired:

Property, plant and equipment 26,168 — 26,168
Trademark — 108,000 108,000
[nventories 4,329 — 4,329
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 17,384 — 17,384
Bank and cash balances 1.432 — 1.432
Provision for taxation (3.124) — (3.124)
Deferred services income (63) — (63)
Deferred tax liabilities (624) (18,900 (19,524)
Creditors, deposits and accruals (10,031) — (10,031
Contingent liabilities - (1,000) (1,000)
35.471 $8.100 123,571
Goodwill 82,392
205,963

Total costs:

Purchase consideration satisfied by cash 203.684
Costs incurred for the acquisition 2,279
205,963

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid (205.963)
Bank balances and cash acquired 1.432
(204,531

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Pacific Coffee is attributable to the anticipated profitability
of the operation of coffee shops.

The Group recognised the contingent liabilities of approximately HK3$.1,000,000 in respect of
liquidated damages for an alleged breach of a wholesale food supply contract.

Pacific Coffee contributed in its 10-month period HK$179.5 million and HK$18.8 million to the
Group's revenue and profit before tax for the year respectively.
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April, 2005, nor is it intended to be a projection of future profits.

3s.

If the acquisition had been completed on tst April, 2005, the Group's revenue for the year would
have been HK$859 million, and profit for the year would have been HK$39.8 million. This proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purpose, the Group is organised into three divisions. These divisions are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information. In prior year, the Group was
organised into four divisions, which were computer and business machines, network solution and
telecommunication system, technical and maintenance services and investment in securities and
others. Due to the entry into a new business, the food and beverage market and the streamline of its
existing business, the Group reorganises its business activities into three divisions. Segment
information about these businesses is presented below. Comparative figures have been restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Turnover and results
Year ended 31st March, 2006

TURNOVER

RESULTS
Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses
Unallocated corporate income
Interest income

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Income tax expenses

Profit for the vear

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage  and others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000
549,011 179,469 103,265 831,745
18,352 18.794 5,734 42.880
(5.611)
5,812
1,653
(3,906)
40,828
(3,862)
36,966
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Turnover and results
Year ended 3ist March, 2005

Computer and
information Investments
communication in securities
technology  and others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000

(Restated)
TURNOVER 574.860 112,248 687,108
RESULTS
Segment results 1,546 1,349 2,895
Unallocated corporate expenses (445)
Interest income 269
Share of results of an associate (826) — (826)
Finance costs (1
Profit before taxation 1.892
Income tax expenses (339)
Profit for the year 1.553

The Group has no inter-segment sales for the two years ended 31st March, 2006.

Assets and liabilities
As at 31st March, 2006

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage  and others Consolidated

HK3'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000

ASSETS

Segment assets 146,579 254,634 156,358 551,571

Unallocated corporate assets 73,261

Consolidated total assets 630,832

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities 69,948 17,878 — 87.826

Unallocated corporate liabilities 131,730

Consolidated total liabilities 219,556
——

— 60 —




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Assets and liabilities
As at 31st March, 2005

Computer and
information Envestments
communication in securities
technology  and others Consclidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

(Restated)
ASSETS
Segment assets 135,101 238,064 373,165
Amount due from an associate 379 — 379
Unallocated corporate assets 86,911
Consolidated total assets 460,455
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 70,480 - 70,480
Unallocated corporate liabilities 11,439
Consolidated total liabilities 81,919
Other information
Year ended 3ist March, 2000
Computer and
information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage and others Consolidated

HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$'600

Capital additions 8.635 149,975 43 158,658
Depreciation 4,775 10,567 459 15,801
Impairment loss on available-for-sale

investments — — 2,466 2,466
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 198 686 (1.235) (351)
Write-down of inventories 1,000 — —_ 1,000

Other information
Year ended 31st March, 2005

Computer and
information Investments
communication in securities
technology  and others Consclidated
HK3'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

(Restated)
Allowance of doubtful debts 955 _ 955
Capital additions 5,664 399 6,063
Depreciation 4,208 138 4,346
Impairment loss on investment securities — 560 560
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 430 — 450
Write-down of inventories 518 — 518
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Geographical segments

The Group’s operations in food and beverage business are carried out in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Mainland China whereas its operations in the computer and information communication
technology business are carried out in Hong Kong, Thaitland and Mainland China. The trading of
investments in securities is carried out in Hong Kong. The following is an analysis of the Group's
turnover by geographical market:

Turnover by geographical market

2006 2005
HK3'000 % HK3'000 %
Hong Kong 746,747 89 607,118 88
Thaitand 66.284 3 69,028 10
Singapore 15,730 2 — —_—
Others 2,984 1 10,962 2
831,745 100 687,108 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and additions to
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets analysed by geographical area in which the
assets are located:

Additions to properties,

Carrying amounts plant and eguipment

of segment assets and intangible assets

2006 2005 2006 2005
HKS'000 % HKS'000 % HKS'000 %  HK$'000 %
Hong Kong 558,891 89 400,498 87 153,444 97 5,036 82
Thailand 51,977 8 51,551 [ 909 1 1,606 17
Singapore 9.307 1 — — 3,149 1 — -
Others 10,657 2 8,406 2 1,156 1 | I
630,832 100 460,455 100 158,658 160 6,063 100

36. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES® EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emocluments paid (o the Directors of the Company are as follows:

2006
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees henefits contributions Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

Executive Directors:
Miss Lily Chow — 1,212 91 1,303

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr Shinichi Yonehara 120 — — 120
Mr Wu King Cheong 120 - — 120
Mr Kwong Man Sing 120 — — 120

360 1,212 91 1,663
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2005
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and other scheme
fees benefits contributions Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK§'000

Executive Director;
Miss Lily Chow — 1,212 8 1,220

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr Shinichi Yonehara 120 — — 120
Mr Wu King Cheong 120 — — 120
Mr Kwong Man Sing 60 - — 60

300 1,212 8 1,520

Except for the directors® fees paid to each of the Independent Non-executive Directors, no other
emoluments were paid or payable to the Independent Non-executive Directors during the two years ended
3!st March, 2006.

[n additien to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Fung Pak Kwan,
Mr Kuok Hei Sang, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Mr Kan Ka Hon, Directors of the Company received
remuneration totalling HK$20,074,000 (2005; HK$16,621,000) from the Company’s ultimate holding
company in respect of their services provided to the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries including
the Group.

The amounts paid by the ultimate holding company have not been allocated between the services of
the directors as Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and their services to the ultimate holding
company and its other subsidiaries.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2006 included one
Director (2005: one Director), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2005: four) highest paid individuals are as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HKE$'G00

Performance based bonus 349 —
Salaries and other benefits 3,804 3,197
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 158 181

4,311 3.378

The emoluments of these four highest paid individuals fail within the fellowing bands:

Number of individuals

2006 2005

Bands
Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 3
HK$%1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
HK$%$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 —_
4 4
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37. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND TRADEMARK

As explained in note 35, the Group uses business segments as its primary segment for reporting
segment information. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and trademark with indefinite useful
lives set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively have been allocated to a single CGU, “food and beverage™.

During the year ended 31st March, 2006, management of the Group determined that there has been
no impairment of its CGU containing the goodwill or the trademark.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
four-year period and the cash flows beyond the four-year period are extrapolated using diminishing growth
rates from 10% and a discount rate of 12%. These growth rates are based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Another key
assumption for the value-in-use calculations is the budgeted gross margin, which is determined based on
the CGU’s past performance and management's expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonable possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregale
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,

38. CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31st March, 2006, certain properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$7,605,000 (2005:
HK3$8,163,000) were mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas subsidiary.

39. OPERATING LEASE
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

Within one year 51,269 3,655
In the second to fifth year inclusive 63,969 83
115,238 3,738

Operating leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term ranging from two to three years.

The operating lease rentals of certain coffee shops of the Group are dztermined based on the
turnover of the coffee shops should such amounts be higher than the minimum guaranteed renal.

The Group as lessor

All the investment properties were leased out for a period of three years and the Group did not have
any rencwal options given to the lessee. The future payments receivable by the Group with one year under
non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$292,000 (2005: HK$360,000).

40, SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme™) was adopted by the shareholders pursuant (o g
resolution passed on 20th September, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing (he participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whaole. The Scheme will expire on 19th September, 2012.
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The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
sharcholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit") or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, at
the date of shareholders™ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s and CIHL’s sharcholders. Each grant of options
to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must be approved by Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any
Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000.000 in the 12-month
period up to the date of grant, such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s and CIHL’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
grant. An option may be exercised in accordance wilh the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors which shall not be later than 10
years from the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant, and the nominal value.

No options have been granted under the Scheme,
41. RETIREMENT BENEFTTS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the benefit of its staff in Hong
Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance {the “ORSO Scheme™) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme {the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group. in funds under
the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prier to the establishment of
the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join
the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs at a
maximum of HK$1,000 to the Scheme. The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees at rate of 5%, and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary.
depending on the length of service with the Group.

Arrangements for staff retirement benefits of overseas employees vary from country to country and
are made in accordance with local regulations and customs.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The amount
of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during the year was HK$201,000 (2005: HK$206,000). At
31st March, 2006, the 1otal amount of forfeited contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
ORSO Scheme and which are available o reduce the centributions payable in future years, was HK$59,000
(2005: HK$70.000). At 31st March, 2006, contributions of HK$555.000 (2005: HK$272,000) were due in
respect of the reporting period and were paid over to the ORSO Scheme in April, 2006.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material transactions with CTHL and its subsidiaries and the Company's associate
regarded as related parties for the purpose of HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures™ issued by the HKICPA
are as follows;

(a) On 28th March, 2005, the Company renewed the management agreement with Chevalier
(HK) Limited (“"CHKL™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL, for the provision of company
secretarial, accounting. electronic data processing, personnel and property management
services by CHKL to the Group in respect of the year ended 31st March, 2006 at a
management fee calculated at the rate of 0.5% of the annual turnover of the Group excluding
those of its overseas subsidiaries. Management fees paid to CHKL during the year under
this agreement amounted to HK$4,005,000 (2005: HK$2,775,000). The management
agreement expired on 28th March, 2006 and has been renewed for a further term of one
year.

APPENDIX 1 FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP
|
|
|
|

(b During the year, the Group sold computer equipment and business machines and provided
maintenance services to wholly-owned subsidiaries ol CIHL totalling HK$10,103.000 (2005:
HK$10.241,000).

(c) During the year, the Group paid rentals determined with reference to market amounting to
HK$4,305,000 (2005: HK$3,828,000) to wholly-owned subsidiarics of CIHL, for the use of
their premises by the Group.

(d) Puring the year. the Group paid storage and delivery charges amounting to HK$158,000
(2005: HK$2.054,000) and HK3$Nil (2005: HK$735,000), respectively, to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIHL to cover its costs for services provided to the Group.

(e} The Group made advances totalling HK$1,366,000 (2005: repaid HK$1,304,000) 1o an
associate. Full provision of approximately HK$1,745,000 was made on the outstanding
amount due at 31st March, 2006 (20035: provision of HK$1,140,000).

H The remuneration paid and payable to the directors and other members of key management
during the year was disclosed in note 36. The remuneration of directors and any key
management is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

The outstanding balance due from CIHL and its subsidiaries arising from the above transactions

mentioned in {a) to (d) and payment of recurring expenses on behalf of the Groug as at 31st March, 2006
amounted 1o HK$3,083,000 (2005: HK$1,477,000).”

— 66 —




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

2. UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2006

The following is the reproduction of the text of the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Group contained in pages | to 11 of the Company’s 2006-2007 interim
report:

“Condensed Consolidated Income Statement
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005

Notes HK$000 HK3'000

Turnover 3 381,879 428,754
Cost of sales (259,329) (335,019)
Gross profit 122,550 93,735
Other income 4 4,940 7.850
Selling and distribution costs (102,256) (67,940)
Administrative expenses (3,582) (3,011)
Other expenses (999) (5,553)
Operating profit 20,653 25,081
Share of result of an associate — (45)
Finance costs (2,541) (1,505
Profit before taxation 5 18,112 23,531
Income tax expenses 6 (2,448) (2,281)

Profit for the period attributable to equity

holders of the Company 15,664 21,250
Dividend 7 4,754 5,141
Earnings per share 8 9.11 cents 12.40 cents
Interim dividend per share 2.5 cents 3.0 cents
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As ar 30th September, 2006

Unaudlited Audited
30th September, 31st March,
2000 2006
Notes HK$'000 HK$'600
Non-current assets
Investment properties 7,175 7.120
Property, plant and equipment 9 62,784 55,895
Prepaid lease payments 2,103 2,192
Goodwill 82,392 82,392
Trademark 108,000 108,300
Interest in an associate 435 —
Available-for-sale investments 18,480 10,020
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss 49,507 49,588
330,876 315,207
Current assets
Inventories 78,823 66,991
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 10 112,503 100,164
Amount due from ultimate
holding company 1,075 1,756
Amounts due from customers
for contract work 141 342
Tax recoverable 191 662
Investments at fair value through
profit or loss 74,742 73,279
Derivative financial instruments — 32
Bank balances and cash equivalents 102,669 72,399
370,144 315,625
Current liabilities
Creditors, bills payables, deposits
and accruals 11 92.652 77,045
Amounts due to customers
for contract work 137 264
Deferred service income 18.391 20,420
Dividend payable 8,568 —
Provision for taxation 840 942
Bank borrowings 52,000 52,000
172,588 150,671
Net current assets 197.556 164,954
Total assets less current liabilities 528,432 480,161
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Unaudited Audited
30th September, 31st March,
2006 2006
Notes HK3 000 HK$ 000
Capital and reserves
Share capital 12 95,078 85,678
Reserves 369,814 325,422
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 464,892 411,100
Minority interests 184 176
Total Equity 465,076 411,276
Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings 43,000 49,000
Deferred taxation 20,356 19,885
63,356 68,885
Total equity and non-current liabilities 528,432 480,161
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the six months ended J0th September, 2006 (unaudited)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Capital  Exchange
Share Share  Capital redemption Muctuation  Retained Minority
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve prafits Total  interests Total
Nore HESO00  HES'000  HKSO00  RKS'G00  HEY'O00  HRS'OO0  HKS'D00  HKS'OO0  HES'000

A 1st April, 2005 85,678 11343 18,060 14 1,651 32432 S 175 331450

Exchange difference arising

on translztion of

financial statements of

foreige operaticns

directly recoznised

in equity - - - - (343} - (343) {10) (533}
Profin for the period - - - — — I Al 1.0 - 21,250

Total recognised income and

epense for the period - - — - (343) 2.0 20507 10y 20,69
Final dividend for 200 paid - - - — — {1.7113) {1.7113) - {L13)
At 30th September. 2005 85,678 134M 18060 14 114 71969 400.269 165 400434
At 151 April, 2006 85,678 111434 18.060 14 1370 8254 411,100 176 411,776

Exchange diffecence arising

on teanslation of

financiai statertients of

foretgn operations

disectly recognised

in equity - - - - 2050 - 1050 § 1038
Profit foz the period - - - - — 13,664 £3.664 - 15.664

Totzl recognised income and

expense for the period - - - - 2050 15.664 17.714 8 17722
Fina! dividend relating

16 2006 7 - - - - - (3.308)  {8.368) - 18.368)
Issue of share capizal $.400 15,246 - — - - 44,646 - 44 646
At 30th September, 2006 95018 158680 18.060 14 JA0 80640 464892 184 465076

— 70—




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

Net cash from operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash from financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash equivalents
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Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2006 2005
HK3'000 HKS$'000
15,445 65,693

(24,028) (239,035)

38,646 104,839
30,063 (68,503)
72,399 181,330
207 312)
102,669 112,515
102,669 112,515
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Notes
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable disclosure
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“"HKAS™) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™).

2, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as appropriate.

The accounting policies used in the condensed financial statements are consistent with those followed
in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2006
except as described below.

In prior years, fixed assets of machinery, tools, equipment. furniture, fixtures, office equipment and
motor vehicles were depreciated on reducing balance basis at annual charge rate of 20% or 40% with initial
charge of 20%. The directors of the Group have reviewed the usage of these assets and considered it
appropriate to depreciate them on a straight line basis over their useful lives from 5 to 10 years. This
change in accounting estimate has no significant impact to the Group’s depreciation charged to the income
statement for the current period.

In the current period, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new
HKFRSs"™} issued by the HKICPA that have become effective. The application of the new HKFRSs has no
material effect on how the results for the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has also considered the new standards, amendments and interpretations that may be
applicable to the Group. The Group has not yet early adopted the following new standard. amendment and
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these new standard, amendment and interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and financial positions of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures!

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments; Disclosures!
HK({IFRIC) - INT & Scope of HKFRS 22

HK(IFRIC) — INT 9 Reassessment of embedded derivatives?
HEK(IFRIC) — INT 10 Interim financial reporting and impairment*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2007,
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st May, 2006.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st June, 2006.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st November. 2006.

P
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3 SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit by business segment and
turnover by geographical segment is as follows:—

(a) By business segment
For the six months ended 30th September, 2006

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage  and others Consolidated

HK$'000 HK3$ 000 HK3'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER 259,798 115,963 6,118 381.879
RESULTS

Segment results 5,999 8,149 8,392 22,540
Unallocated corperate expenses (2.543)
Unallocated corporate income 164
Interest income 492
Operating profit 20,653
Finance costs (2,541)
Profit before taxation 18.112
[ncome tax expenses (2,448)

Profit for the period
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 15,664
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(b)

For the six months ended 30th September, 2005

Computer and

information Investments
communication Food and in securities
technology beverage  and others Consolidated

HK$ 000 HK$600 HKE'000 HK$ 000

TURNOVER 296,408 72.511 59,835 428,754

RESULTS

Segment results 9,145 7.798 5.302 22,245

Unallocated corporate expenses (2.594)
Unaltocated corporate income 4,392

Interest income 1,038

Operating profit 25,081

Share of result of an associate {45) — — 45
Finance costs (1,505)
Profit before taxation 23,531

Income tax expenses (2.281)

Profit for the period
attributable to equity
holders of the Company 21,250

By geographical segment

Turnover

Six months ended

30th September,
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong 331,924 387.129
Thailand 37,230 33,333
Others 12,725 8.292

381,879 428,754

— 74—




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

4. OTHER INCOME

Six months ended

30th September,
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

Included in other income are:

Interest income 492 1,038
Gross rental income from properties less outgoings 220 275
Usnrealised fair value gain of investments at fair value through

profit or loss 3,370 _—
Profit on disposal of properties for sales — 4,392
Gain on foreign exchange contracts — 1,696

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Six months ended

30th September,
2006 2005
HK§'000 HK$'000

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Cost of goods sold 217,515 235,996
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10,356 6,741
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises 31,430 20,127
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 61.476 52,016

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Six months ended

30th September,
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000

The charge/(credit) comprises:
Current taxation

Hong Kong 1,539 1,962
Overseas 439 399

Deferred taxation 470 (80)
2,448 2,281

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated ac the rate of 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local
legislation on the estimated assessable profits.

7. DIVIDEND

Six months ended

30th September,
2006 2005
HK3'000 HK$'000

Interim dividend
HK2.5 cents per share (2005: HK3.0 cents per share) 4,754 5,141
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On 8th December, 2006, the Board of Directors declared an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per
ordinary share. The interim dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in this condensed consolidated
balance sheet, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March,
2007,

A 2006 final dividend of HKS cents (2005: HK 1 cent) per ordinary share, totalling HK$8,568,000
was approved at the annual general meeting held on 28th September, 2006 and paid in October 2006. It has
been reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the six months ended 30th September, 2006.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the profit for the period of HK$15,664,000 (2005:
HK$21,250,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 171.922,446 (2005: 171,355,871)
in issue during the period.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company had no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the two periods ended 30th September, 2005 and 2006.

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the six months ended 30th September, 2006, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of HK$16,956,000 (HK$35,547,000 for the six months ended 30th September, 2005) and disposed of
property, plant and equipment with a net book value of HK$368,000 (HK$989.000 for the six months
ended 30th September, 2005).

10, DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$53,920.000 (31st March,
2006: HK$56,626,000).

The ageing analysis of trade debtors net of allowance of doubtful debts is as follows:

As at 30th As at 31st
September, March,
2006 2006
HK$'000 HK3 000

0-60 days 47,155 49,348
61-90 days 2.516 2,533
Over 90 days 4,249 4,745
Total 53,920 56,626

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The
average credit period granted for trade debtors was 60 days except for sales of food and beverage at coffee
shops which are mainly on cash basis.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other debtors approximate to their fair valoes.
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11

CREDITORS, BILL PAYABLES, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors, bill payables, deposits and accruals are trade creditors and bills payable of

HK$35,053,000 (31st March, 2006: HK$34,416,000),

The ageing analysis of trade crediters and bills payables is as follows:

As at 30th As at 31st
September, March,
2006 2006
HK3'000 HK$'000

0-60 days 32,398 31.166
61-90 days 650 333
Over 90 days 1,965 2,917
Total 35.053 34,416

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other creditors and bills payables approximate to

their fair values.

12,

13.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
30th September, 2006 31st March, 2006
Number of Number of
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares of Nominal Shares of Nominal
HK$0.5 Value HK$0.5 Value
each HK$ 000 each HK$'000
Authorised:
At beginning and end
of the period 240,000,000 120,000 240,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning of the period 171,355,871 85,678 171,355,871 85,678
Issue of shares 18,800,000 9,400 — —
At end of the period 190,155,871 95,078 171,355,871 85,678

OPERATING LEASE
(a) The Group as lessee

At 30ih September, 2006, the Group had total future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as foliows:

As at 30th As at 3lst
September, March,
2006 2006
HK3'000 HK3$°000

Within one year 61.201 51,269
[n the second 1o fifth year inclusive 65,389 63.969
126,590 115,238
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Operating leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term ranging from two to
three years.

The operating lease rentals of certain coffee shops of the Group are determined based on the
turnover of the coffee shops should such amounts be higher than the minimum guaranteed rental.
The above amount of commitmert has only included the minimum guaranteed rental.

(b) The Group as lessor

All the investment properties were leased out for a period of three years and the Group did
not have any renewal options given to the leasees. The future minimum lease receivable by the
Group with one year under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$301.000 (3 Lst March,
2006: HK$292,000).

14, SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 25th November, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement with Sinochina Pacific Limited
to acquire, in two tranches, a total of 100 shares in Sinochina Enterprises Limited (“SEL™), representing
the entire issued share capital of SEL. The two tranches involve the acquisition of 49 and 51 ordinary
shares in SEL constituting respective 49% and 51% of the entire issued share capital of SEL. The total
consideration of the two tranches shall in any event not exceed HK$200 million in aggregate. The
consideration shail be satisfied in cash and financed by the internal resources of the Group.

SEL is engaging in the business of operation of restaurants and other food and beverage outlets in
Hong Kong.

Further details of the event were contained in the Company’s announcement dated ist December,
2006.”

3. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite a mild 4.5% decline in its turnover to HK$549 million. the Computer and
Information Communication Technology segment reported 12 times increase in operating
profit to HK$18.4 million.

The Computer Division continued to perform well and remained as the major contributor
of both turnover and profit in this segment. Profit growth of the division, in particular, was
the result of strong performance of notebook distribution business in Hong Kong, Representing
a worldwide leading brand in notebook computer — Toshiba, the division captured the growing
local demand for computer equipments at the effort of its internal sales teams working in
close collaboration with dealers and suppliers to deepen market penetration. Restructured and
adopting stringent cost control, its Thailand operation managed improvement in performance.
The Business Machines Division also streamlined its operations and scaled down several loss
incurring businesses, focusing its resources and efforts on the more promising local market.

The Network Sclutions Division also recorded improved profit. This division offers
comprehensive telecommunication and IT network solutions to corporale customers. Major
projects undertaken during the year included the provision of maintenance service for the
telephone call center system of The Peninsula Hotel Hong Kong, maintenance of PABX
Systems and Solutions for American International Assurance covering 8,000 extensions, and
installation and maintenance of Business Telephone System for various HKSAR government
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departments. The Thailand Office of this division recorded improved performance in 2005. It
offers comprehensive telecommunication, software applications and [P Telephony Solutions
to corporate clients. Major projects undertaken during the year included the provision of
maintenance service under a 5-year contract for the Call Center of AIS (the largest mobile
phone operator in Thailand) with more than 2000 agents, upgrading the IP PABX (over 3000
users) of CitiBank’s Thailand Office, installation and maintenance of the IP PABX System of
Standard Chartered Bank Thailand.

Pacific Coffee, which was acquired by the Group on May 20, 2005 contributed a 10-
month turnover of HK$180 million to the new Food and Beverage segment for the year.
Segmental profit amounted to HK$18.8 million, which was in line with the Group’s expectation.
The newly acquired business was integrated into the Group’s organisation structure smoothly
without any disruption to daily management and operation. Pacific Coffee continued its growth
plan in Hong Kong and Singapore and expanded into the Mainland China market during the
year. Efforts were made together with suppliers and partners to ensure new shops offer
customers a pleasing environment coupled with high quality products and services. Before the
acquisition in May 2005, Pacific Coffee had a total of 44 outlets. Currently, Pacific Coffee
operates a total of 57 outlets, including 44 in Hong Kong, 8 in Singapore, 3 in Shanghai and 2
in Beijing. It also plans to expand its business to Macau before the end of this year. The
outlets in Hong Kong range from 500 sq. ft. to 4,400 sq. ft. in floor area. The new shops in
Tung Chung and Wanchai are large-scale outlets of 3,000 sq. ft. and 2,500 sq. ft. respectively.
With providing world-class coffee, delicious foods and comfortable environment as its
objectives, Pacific Coffee is bold in adopting new concepts and store designs — the Pak Fook
Store in Wanchai took on a contemporary look in April this year, and expanded its product
offerings to include “Gelato”, freshly made Italian style ice cream and sorbet. To further
strengthen Pacific Coffee’s image and market leadership, the Group plans to step up investment
in IT infrastructure, marketing campaign and internal management system of the business to
enhance efficiency and customer loyalty.

In addition to the food and beverage retail business, Pacific Coffee also sells its branded
products to wholesale accounts and provides coffee services to corporate accounts. Convinced
by the success of Pacific Coffee in capturing the fast growing and lucrative specialty coffee
business in Hong Kong, the PRC and neighboring countries, the Board intends to further
develop the Group’s food and beverage businesses to obtain economy of scale and broaden
the income stream. New stores will be added to the Pacific Coffee chain, and expansion
through acquisition will be considered, if the right opportunities arise.

Favorable conditions in the equity and bond securities market saw the profit of the
Group’s investment in securities segment increase by 325% to HK$5.7 million. The Group,
however, has continued to adopt a prudent approach in managing its investment in securities
with its portfolio weighing more heavily on structured deposits and debentures. The Group
also maintains high liquidity in the portfolio with substantial cash on hand to meet the needs
of operating and investing activities from time to time.
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4. FINANCIAL REVIEW AND EMPLOYEES POLICIES OF THE GROUP FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

As at 31 March 2006, the Group’s total net asset attributable to equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$41! million (2005: HK$378 million), an increase of HK$33 million
or 9% when compared with 2005.

Total debt to equity ratio was 24.6% (2005: 0.03%) and net debt to equity ratio was nil
(2005: Nil), which are expressed as a percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net
borrowings respectively, over the total net asset of HK$411 million (2005: HK$378 million).

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$101
million (2005: HK$121,000). Cash and deposit at bank including structured deposits amounted
to HK$122 million (2005: HK$181 million) and there are no net borrowings for the two years.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$3.9 million (2005: HK$1,000). The increase
is due to the increase of banking loans of over HK$100 million to finance mainly the acquisition
of Pacific Coffee.

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To
achieve better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong
Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently reviewed.
In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

As at 31 March 2006, the Group employed approximately 846 full time staff globally.
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$112 million for the year ended 31 March
2006. The remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job,
market trend, company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and employees’
share option scheme.

Financial review and employees policy of the Group for the six months ended 30 September
2006

As at 30 September 2006, the Group’s total net assets attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to HK$465 million (HK$411 million as at 31 March 2006).

As at 30 September 2006, total debt to equity ratio was 20.4% (24.6% as at 31 March
2006) and net debt to equity ratio was nil (Nil as at 31 March 2006), which are expressed as a

percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings respectively, over the total net
assets of HK$465 million (HK$411 million as at 31 March 2006).
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As at 30 September 2006, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$95
million (HK$101 million as at 31 March 2006). Cash and deposit at bank including structured
deposits amounted to HK$152 million (HK$122 million as at 31 March 2006) and there are no
net borrowings as at 30 September 2006 (Nil as at 31 March 2006). The improvement in cash
position was mainly attributable to the share placement of 18.8 million new shares in August
2006, bringing in net proceeds after expenses of HK$44.6 million for the expansion of food
and beverage business and for the general working capital of the Group.

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To
achieve betier risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong
Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently reviewed.
In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

As at 30 September 2006, the Group employed approximately 850 full time staff globally.
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$61 million for the period under review. The
remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market
trend, company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses
awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share

option scheme,
5. PROSPECTS

Outlook for the computer and information communication technology business remains
uncertain as margin continues to be under the pressure of market competition. That said, Hong
Kong’'s economy is expanding at a brisk pace while interest rates remain relatively low with
the added prospect of downward adjustments as 2007 appears on the horizon. Furthermore,
the labor market is improving and this will spur consumption, hence investment in IT
expenditure is expected to see moderate growth. Never complacent, the Group will continually
seek ways to bring added value to customers, whether in the form of comprehensive solutions
or reliable high-performance products and services.

For the stylish food and beverage business, in particular, Pacific Coffee, there are a
number of initiatives in the pipeline. In Hong Kong, small or unprofitable stores facing high
rental increases will be relocated. In Beijing and Shanghai, the Group will establish stores in
more retail focused shopping areas and tourist locations so as to improve Pacific Coffee’s
brand visibility and profitability. In Singapore, the newly opened Vivo City store has already
earned highly positive feedback from customers and become a new flagship. Not satisfied,
management of Pacific Coffee will focus on building a strong regional team with local talent
to ensure long-term growth.
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With Igor's creative food and beverage concepts as well as Pacific Coffee’s strong
retail and brand presence, the Group is well positioned to continue capturing a growing share
of the burgeoning lifestyle-based food and beverage market in Hong Kong, the PRC and other
parts of Asia,

6. WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that after taking into account the Group’s internal
resources, the present available banking facilities and the proceeds from the Disposal, the
Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements for the twelve months from
the date of this circular.

7. INDEBTEDNESS STATEMENT
Borrowings

As at the close of business on 31 January 2007, being the latest practicable date for the
purpose of this indebtedness statement, the Group had outstanding unsecured bank borrowings
of approximately HK$126.6 million.

Disclaimer

Saved as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Group did not, at the close
of business on 31 January 2007, have any outstanding loan capital issued and outstanding or
agreed to be issued, bank overdraft, charges or debentures, mortgages, loans, or other similar
indebtedness or any finance lease commitments, hire purchase commitments, liabilities under
acceptances (other than normal trade bills), acceptance credits or any guarantees or other
material contingent liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that there have been no material changes in the
indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the Group since 31 January 2007,

8. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse

change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 March 2006, being the date
to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made up.
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1. INTRODUCTION

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 December 2006 and the
circular of the Company dated 7 February 2007, the Company entered into an agreement to
acquire, in two tranches, a total of 100 ordinary shares of SEL, being the entire issued share
capital of SEL, for an aggregate consideration not to exceed HK$200 million. The first tranche
comprises 49 shares of SEL (“Tranche I'"), and the second tranche comprises 51 shares of SEL
(“Tranche II").

The SEL Group {also known under the trade name of “Igor’s”) has 20 food & beverage
outlets in operations including, among others, “Wildfire”, “The Boathouse”, “Stormies
Crabshack”, “Café de Paris”, “Stormies”, “The Cavern”, “Swindlers” and “Typhoon” in various
prime dining destinations and premier entertainment districts in Hong Kong.

Completion of acquisition of Tranche I took place on 31 January 2007 and an amount of
approximately HK$42.8 million (subject to adjustments) was paid as consideration. Completion
for acquisition of Tranche Il shall take place within 21 days after the issue of the audited
accounts of the SEL Group for the year ending 31 December 2008, or such other dates as the
parties may agree.

After completion of the acquisition of Tranche I and before completion of the acquisition
of Tranche 11, the SEL Group will be equity accounted for as an associated company of the
Company in accordance with the HKFRS. After completion of the acquisition ef Tranche II,
SEL will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results will be consolidated
into the Group’s accounts.
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2. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The audited financial information of the SEL Group for the three years and eleven
months ended 30 November 2006 have been set out in the circular of the Company dated 7

February 2007. Set out below is a summary of the audited financial information on the SEL

Group contained in the circular of the Company dated 7 February 2007 for Shareholders’

information:

Results

TURNQOVER
COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

ADMINISTRATIVE AND
OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

FINANCE COSTS

SHARE OF RESULTS OF
ASSOCIATES

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
TAX EXPENSE

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE
TG SHAREHOLDERS

DIVIDEND

Period from
15 January
2003 (date of
incorporation of
CL Holdings
Limited}) to Fleven months ended
3 December Year ended 31 December 30 November
2003 2004 2005 2008 2006
HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
(unaudited)
45,7142 81424 105,804 95,591 107.041
(9.373) {15.348) {20,210 (18,209) {2£.176)
36,369 66,076 85,594 71,382 85.865
4,794 1,925 3622 1431 7.006
(38,422 (64,251) (79,949 {73,169 {85,862)
(67 {238) (140 (99) {231)
- - 292 354 506
2,674 3512 9419 5.899 7,584
(721 {1,160 (1,084) (907 {999)
1,953 2,352 8335 4,992 6,585
- - 7.200 — -
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Assets and liabilities

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

As at

As at 31 December 30 November

2003 2004 2005 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
13.816 17,870 21,594 25,112
7.312 12,418 17,539 25,005
21,128 30,288 39,133 50,117
18,490 19,681 18,770 28,373
974 280 139 2,135
19,464 19,961 18,909 30,508
1,664 10,327 20,224 19,609
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The following is the text of letters prepared for inclusion in this circular received from

the independent valuers in connection with their valuation of the Properties.

1. VALUATION OF PROPERTY IN HONG KONG

Knight 'S
Frank ih

Knight Frank Petty Ltd
4/F Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
Tel: 2840 1177
Fax: 2840 0600
4 April 2007

The Directors

Chevailer iTech Holdings Limited

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay |
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

In accordance with your instructions for us to value the property held by Chevalier
iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (togsther known as “the
Group™), we confirm that we have carried out inspections, made relevant enquiries and
searches and abtained such further information as we consider necessary for the purpose
of providing you with our opinion of the market value of the property as at 31 January
2007.

Qur valuation of the property is our opinion of its market value which we would
define as intended to mean “the estimated amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation beiween a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.”

The market value specifically excludes an estimated price inflated or deflated by
special terms or circumstances such as atypical financing, sale and leaseback
arrangements, joint ventures, management agreemenis, special considerations or
concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale, or any element of special
value. The market value of a property is also estimated without regard to cosis of sale
or purchase, and without offset for any associated taxes.
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We have generally valued the property by reference to comparable market
transaction. The property is occupied by the Group and we have valued the property
assuming sale with vacant possession,

We have relied to a considerable extent on the information provided by the
Company and have accepted advice given to us on such matters as statutory notices,
easements, tenure, particulars of occupancy, floor area and all other relevant matters.
We have caused searches to be made at the Land Registry. However, we have not
scrutinised the original documents to verify ownership or to verify any amendments
which may not appear on the copies handed to us. We have no reason to doubt the truth
and accuracy of the information provided to us by the Group which is material to the
valuation. We are also advised by the Group that no material fact has been omitted from
the information supplied. We consider that we have been provided with sufficient
information to reach an informed view. All documents and leases have been used as
reference only and all dimensions, measurements and areas are approximate.

We have inspected the exterior of the property valued. During the course of our
inspection, we did not note any serious defects. However, no structural survey has been
made and we are therefore unable to report as to whether the property is or is not free of
rot, infestation or any other defects. No tesis were carried out on any of the services.

No allowance has been made in our valuation for any charges, mortgages or
amounts owing on the property valued nor for any expenses or taxation which may be
incurred in effecting a sale. Unless otherwise stated, it is assumed that the property is
free from encumbrances, restrictions and outgoings of any onerous nature which could
affect its value.

In preparing our valuation report, we have complied with “The HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties (First Edition 2005)” published by The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors and all the requirements contained in the provisions of Chapter 5 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

We enclose herewith our valuation report.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
Knight Frank Petty Limited
Alex S L Ng
MHKIS MRICS RPS (GP)
Executive Director

Note: Mr. Alex § L Ng is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice} and
has extensive valuation experience in Hong Kong and the PRC properties.
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Property

Commercial Unit
on 23rd Floor

88 Lockhart Road
Wan Chai

Hong Keng.

1 1/343rd shares of and

in Inland Lots Nos.
40115, 4016 and 4017,

Notes:

YALUATION REPORT

Description

The property comprises the
whole of the office floor on
23rd Floor of a 24-storey
(including a basement)
commercial building known
as 88 Lockhart Road and was
completed in 1990

The gross floor area of the
property is approximately
2,010 sq. fu.

The property is held under
three Government Leases each
for a term of 99 years
renewable for 99 years
commencing from 25 May
1929,

The total Government rent for
the whole lots is HK$34 per
annum,

Market Value in
existing state as at
31 January 2007

Particulars of
occupancy
The property is HK$6,000,000
currently occupied by

the Group as a service

centre.

(1) The registered owner of the property is Lucky Fine Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

2) The property is zoned “Commercial / Residential” under Wan Chai Outlinz Zoning Plan No. S/H5/
24 dated 27 QOctober 2006.
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2.

VALUATION OF PROPERTIES IN THE PRC

MV Debenham &
Tie Leung =2

International Property Advisers 17T

The Directors

10th Floor

Jardine House

I Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

4 April 2007

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
22/F, Chevalier Commercial Centre

8 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay
Kowloon

Dear Sirs,

Re : Portfolio Valuation

Instructions,
Purpose &
Date of Valuation

Definition of Open
Market Value

We refer to your instruction for us to value the market values
of certain properties held by Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
{referred to as the “Company”) and/or its subsidiaries
(hereinafter together referred to as the “Group™) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC™). We confirm that we have
carried out site inspection, made relevant enquiries and obtained
such further information as we consider necessary for the
purpose of providing you with our opinion of the market value
of the properties as at 31 Janvary 2007.

Our valuation of each of the properties represents its Market
Value which in accordance with the Valuation Standards on
Properties of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors is defined
as “the estimated amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s-length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”.
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Valuation Bases
& Assumption

Method of Valuation

Source of Information

Our valuations of the properties excludes an estimated price
inflated or deflated by special terms or circumstances such as
atypical financing, sale and leaseback asrungement, special
considerations or concessions granted by anyone associated
with the sale, or any element of special value.

In the course of our valuations of the properties which are
situated in the PRC, we have assumed that transferable land
use rights in respect of the properties for specific land use
terms at nominal annual land use fees have been granted and
that any premiums payable have already been fully paid.

We have also assumed that the grantees or the users of the
respective properties have free and uninterrupted rights to use
or to assign the respective properties for the whole of the
respective unexpired terms as granted. We have relied on the
advice given by the Group regarding the title of the respective
properties and the Group’s inierest in them,

No allowance has been made in our valuations for any charges,
mortgages or amounts owing on the respective properties nor
for any expenses or taxation which may be incurred in effecting
a sale. Unless otherwise stated, it is assumad that the properties
are free from encumbrances, restrictions and outgoing of any
onerous nature which could affect their values.

In valuing the property interests, we have complied with the
requirements set out in Chapter 5 of and Practice Note 12 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Valuation Standards (First
Edition 2005) on Valuation of Properties published by The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

We have valued the properties by direct comparison approach
by making reference (o comparable sales evidences as available
in the relevant market and where appropriate, by capitalizing
the net rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due allowance for the reversionary potential of the properties.

We have relied to a very considerable extent on information
given by the Group and have accepted advice given to us on
such matters as planning approvals or statutory notices,
easements, tenure, particulars of occupancy, lettings, floor areas
and all other relevant matters.

— 90—




APPENDIX III

VALUATION REPORTS ON THE PROPERTIES

Title Investigation

Site Inspection

Currency

Dimensions, measurements and areas included in the valuation
certificates attached are based on information contained in the
documents provided to us and are therefore only
approximations. We have had no reason to doubt the truth and
accuracy of the information provided to us which is material
to the valuations. We were also advised by the Group that no
material facts have been omitted from the information supplied.

We have been provided with copies of documents in relation
to the titles to the respective properties. However, we have not
carried out searches to verify the ownership of the properties
and to ascertain any amendment which may not appear on the
copies handed to us.

We have inspected the exterior and, where possible, the interior
of each of the properties. However, no structural survey has
been made, but in the course of our inspection, we did not note
any serious defect. We are not, however, able to report that the
properties are free of rot, infestation or other structural defects.
Unless otherwise stated, we have not been able to carry out
on-site measurement to verify the site and floor areas of the
respective properties and we have assumed that the areas shown
on the copies of the documents handed to us are correct,

Unless otherwise stated, all sums stated in our valuations are
in Renminbi, the official currency of the PRC.

A summary of our valuations and our valuation certificates are attached below.

Yours faithfully,
for and on behalf of
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited

K. B. Wong
China Real Estate Appraiser
Registered Professional Surveyor (GP)
M.R.I.C.S.,, M.H.K.1.5.
Director

Note: Mr. K. B, Wong is a Registered Professional Surveyor who has over 20 years of experience in the
valuation of properties in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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SUMMARY OF VALUATIONS

Capital value
in existing state

Capital value in Interest attributable to

existing state as at  attributable to the Group as at

Property 31 January 2007 the Group 31 Januvary 2007
RMB RMB

Group I — Property interest owned and occupied by the Group in the PRC

1. Units B and F, Level 18, 1,700,000 100% 1,700,000
Shanghai Jinli Plaza,
No. 3 of Alley No. 600
Livuzhou Road,
Xuhui District,
Shanghai,
the PRC

Sub-total: 1,700,000
Group II — Property interests held for investment by the Group in the PRC

2, Unit 1804, Level 18, 1,950,000 100% 1,950,000
Dongshan Plaza,
No. 69 Xianlie Central Road,
Dongshan District,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC

3. Units 1805 to 1807, Level 18, 5,860,000 100% 5,860,000
Dongshan Plaza,
Na. 69 Xianlie Central Road,
Dongshan District,

Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
Sub-total: 7,810,000
Grand total : 9,510, 000
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VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Group I — Property interests owned and occupied by the Group in the PRC

Property

1. Units B and F,
Level 18,
Shanghai Jinli Plaza,
No. 3 of Alley No. 600
Liuzhou Road,
Xuhui District,
Shanghai,
the PRC

Notes:

Description and tenure

The property comprises 2
residential units on Level 18
of a 24-storey residentiul
building completed in 1997.

The property comprises a total
gross floor area of 169.48
sq.m. (1,824 sq.ft.).

The land use rights of the
property have been granted
for a term from 28 April 1997
to 15 August 2063 for
residential use.

Capital value in
existing state as at
31 January 2007

Particulars of
occupancy

The property is RMB1,700,000
currently owner-

occupied.

(N According to 2 Real Estate Title Certificates issued by Shanghai Municipal Housing and Land
Administration Bureau ( L #1152 T HE 4T M F}) issued on 19 December 1997, the land use rights
and building ownership of the property comprising a total gross floor area of 169.48 sq.m. have
been granted to Lucky Fine Limited (& %8 45 fl 4 8]}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for a term from 28 April 1997 to 15 August 2063 for residential use with details as follows:

Unit No. Certificate No. Gross Floor Area
(sq.m.)
18B (1997)006126 84.74
18F (1997)006127 84.74
Total: 169.48
2) We have reviewed the Real Estate Title Certificates and the payment receipt for sales and purchase

of the property and prepared our valuation on the following basis:

(i) The property is held by Lucky Fine Limited (B % & R4 & }under two Real Estate Title
Certificates Nos. (1997) 006126 and (1997) 006127 for a land use term from 28 April 1997
to 15 August 2063 for residential use;

(iiy  Lucky Fine Limited (P 5 4 fR 2+ & }has duly setiled all the payment agreed in the sales
and purchase of the property; and

(iii)  Lucky Fine Limited (J8 % # f 2% &) has the right to freely lease, transfer, mortgage and
dispose of the land use rights and building ownership rights of the property.
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VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Group II — Property interests held for investment by the Group in the PRC

Property

2. Unit 1804, Level 18,
Dangshan Plaza,
No. 69 Xianlie
Central Road,
Dengshan District,
Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

the¢ PRC

Notes:

Description and tenure

The property comprises an
office unit on Level 18 of a
27-storey office building
erected on a 4-storey
commercial podivm
completed in 1996.

The property comprises a
total gross floor area of
168.66 sq.m. (1,815 sq.ft.).

The land use rights of the
property have been granied
for a term of 50 years from
24 January 1995 for office
use.

Capital value in
existing state as at
occupancy 31 January 2007

Particulars of

The property is leased RMB1,950.000
for a term from 1

March 2006 to 28

February, 2009 at a

monthly rent of

RMB12,649.50,

exclusive of

management fees and

utilities charges.

(1} According to Real Estate Title Certificate No. C1423353 issued by Burean of Land Resources and
Housing Management of Guangzhou Municipality SEH T L B W AE E WL /5) issued on 4
December 2002, the land use rights and building ownership of the property comprising a gross floor
area of 168.66 sq.m. have been granted to Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co., Lud. (& # H
LR TR AT R~ 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for a term of 50 years from
24 January 19935 for office use.

(2) We have reviewed the Real Estate Title Certificate and the payment receipt for sales and purchase
of the property and prepared our valuation on the following basis:

(i) The property is held by Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co., Ltd. (FE 4 JE = RH L T
A5 B 4> W under a Real Estate Title Certificate No. C1423353 for a land use term of 50

years from 24 January 1995 for office use;

(i) Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co., Lid. (M H 4= B £ T B R 4 Fl)has duly settled
all the payment agreed in the sales and purchase of the property; ard

(iii)  Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Services Co., Ltd. (B H + B8 TH A B 2 F])has the right
to freely lease, transfer, mortgage and dispose of the land use rights and building ownership
rights of the property.
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Property

3, Units 1805 to 1807,

Level 18,

Dongshan Plaza,

No. 69 Xianlie
Central Road,
Dongshan District,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC

Notes:

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Particulars of

Description and tenure occupancy

The property comprises 3
office units on Level 18 of a

The property is leased
for a term from

1 March 2006 10 28
February 2009 at a
monthly rent of
RMB38.,025, exclusive
of management fees
and utilities charges.

27-storey office building
erected on a 4-storey
commercial podium
completed in 1996.

The property comprises
total gross floor area of 507
sq.m. (5,457 sq.ft.).

The land use rights of the
property have been granted
for a term of 50 years from
24 January 1995 for office
use.

Capital value in
existing state as at
31 January 2007

RMB3,860,000

(1) According to 3 Real Estate Title Certificates issued by Guangzhou Land and Housing Administration
Bureau (8% M 17 B 4= 5 & & ) issued on 16 April 1999, the land use rights and building ownership
of the property comprising a total gross floor area of 507 sq.m. have been granted to Lucky Fine
Limited (f 845 B2 2> i), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for a term of 30 years from
24 January 1995 for office use with details as follows;

Unit No. Certificate No. Gross Floor Area
(sq.m.)
1805 0466796 171.59
1806 0466795 163.82
1807 0466794 171.59
Total: 507.00
(2) We have reviewed the Real Estate Title Certificates and the payment receipt for sales and purchase

of the property and prepared our valuation on the following basis:

(i) The property is held by Lucky Fine Limited () 845 [R 2% 5))under three Real Estate Title
Certificates Nos. 0466794, 0466795 and 0466796 for a land use term of 50 years from
24 Januvary 1995 for office use;

(ii)  Lucky Fine Limited (&) %47 B} 2} B])has duly settled all the payment agreed in the sales
and purchase of the property; and

(iii)  Lucky Fine Limited (%) % 3 B 22 &) has the right to freely lease, transfer, mortgage and
dispose of the land use rights and building ownership rights of the property.
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3.

VALUATION OF PROPERTIES IN THAILAND

Sallmanns (Far East} Limited

N ting m Sallmanns Group

Surlyawongse, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500, Thailand
Tel: (662) 634 B500 Fax: (662) 634 8511
e-mail: bangkok @sallmannsthailand.com

International Property Consultants & Valuers
www.sallmannsthailand.com

The Directors

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, Hong Kong

4 April 2007
Dear Sirs,
Re Property Valuations, Bangkok, Thailand

In accordance with your instructions to value the properties in which Chevalier
iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter together referred
to as the “Group™) have interests in Bangkok, Thailand. We confirm that we have
carried out inspections, made relevant enquiries and searches and obtained such further
information as we consider necessary for the purpose of providing you with our opinion
of the Market Value and/or value of the property-lessee interest as at 31 January 2007
(the date of valuation”).

Our valuations of the office property named “Chevalier House” and the
Condominium Unit, { in Saranjai Mansion)} represent the Market Value which we would
define as intended to mean “the estimated amount for which a property should exchange
on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arms length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the partics had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion”

Our valuations of the retail shop units, namely Silom Cenire and the Fortune
Town property interests represent the Lessee Interest or value which we would define
as intended to mean “The ownership interest that is created by the terms of a lease
rather than the underlying rights of real estate ownership. The lease interest is subject
to the terms of a specific lease arrangement, expires within a specified time, and may
be capable of subdivision or subleasing to other parties”.

We have principally valued the properties by the direct comparison with current
market approach.
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A list of major assumptions made in the preparation of this valuation and the
limiting conditions under which this opinion is given is detailed in this letter. It is a
condition of the use of this assessment that the recipient of the Valuation Certificates
accepts these statements, and our assessment is based upon estimates, assumptions and
other information supplied by Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, discussions with
industry contacts, our research of the market and knowledge of the Thailand property
industry.

1. The valuation is contingent upon all advice and information relative to the property
as supplied being true and correct.

2. The Valuer reserves the right to review and if necessary, amend the Valuation
should evidence contrary to that supplied be revealed.

3. Valuation methodology has generally followed standards as set by The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and The International Valuation
Standards Committee (IVSC) unless where local standards or customs differ, and
Thai Valuation Standards and in compliance with the requirements contained in
Chapter 5 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

However, real estate values vary from time to time in response to changing
market circumstances and it should therefore be noted that this assessment of value is
based on the facts and evidence as they existed as at the date of valuation and no
warranty can be given as to the maintenance of this value into the future. It is therefore
recommended that the valuation be reviewed periodically.

Our report is based upon an assessment of current and likely future conditions.
We do stress that the estimation of future market conditions is a very problematic
exercise, which at best should be regarded as an indicative assessment of possibilities
rather than absolute certainties. The process of making forward projections involves
assumptions regarding a considerable number of variables, which are acutely sensitive
to changing conditions, The actual levels of sale price, take up, sales rates, occupancy,
revenue and expenses may vary from our forecast due to unforeseen circumstances and
the differences may be material. To rely upon our valuation therefore, the reader must
be satisfied as to the reasoning behind these future estimates.

In valuing the property interests, we have complied with the requirements contained
in Chapter 5 of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited , the RICS Appraisal and
Vatuation Standards (5th Edition May 2003) published by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors,; and the HKIS Valuation Standard on Properties (1st Edition January
2005) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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We state that this report is confidential to, and intended for the use only of the
party to whom it is addressed and for no other purpose than the specific purpose to
which it refers. No responsibility is accepted for any loss suffered arising from a use
other than that for which the report is prepared, nor is any responsibility accepted to
any third party for the whole or part of the contents of this report.

No significant changes in the market are assumed to transpire between the date of
inspection and the date of valuation of this report that could exert either a negative or
positive influence over the value of the property.

Where market values are assessed, they reflect the full contract value and no
account is taken of any costs and/or tax expenses involving the transfer, sale or use(s)
of the property.

We have assumed the instructions and subsequent information supplied by
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited and/or their advisors contain a full and truthful
disclosure of all information that is relevant. Accordingly information, estimates and
opinions furnished to us and contained in this report have been obtained from sources
considered reliable and believed to be true and correct. Sallmanns (Far East) Limited
can accept no responsibility if this should prove not to be so.

The values and any allocation of values illustrated within this report are purely
for the purposes of a guide and set out such permutation in support of our opinion of
value. The values assessed should not be used in conjunction with any other assessment
as they may prove incorrect if so used.

We have assumed the properties are free and clear of any and all charges, liens
and encumbrances of an onerous nature likely to affect value, whether existing or
otherwise, unless otherwise stated. We assume no responsibility for matters legal in
nature nor do we render any apinion as to the title which is assumed to be good and
marketable. We are not aware of any easements, servitudes or rights of way affecting
the property and our valuation assumes that none exist other than those stated within
the report.

The real estate market is assumed to remain as can be envisaged from current
market information and likely trends generally perceivable, No adverse impact to the
economy, which could in turn negatively affect the property market and real estate
industry, (such as severe capital flight or political unrest) is assumed in our valuation.

All documents have been used for reference only. All dimension, measurements
and area are based on information contained in the documents provided to us or advised
by the instructing party or measured by the valuer(s) and are therefore approximations
only.
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Whilst we have carried out a careful external building inspection, we advise that
we have not completed a detailed structural survey, engineering tests, tested any of the
services, or inspected unexposed or inaccessible portions of the building, and are therefore
unable to state that these are free of defect, dangerous materials and modifications, rot
or infestation. We have viewed the general state of repair of the building(s) and have
assumed that the improvements are reasonably structurally sound considering their age,
unless otherwise stated within this report.

We advise that we have not carried out a detailed site survey and we have of
necessity assumed for the purposes of this Valuation, that all structural improvements
have been erected within the Title/property boundaries.

Unless otherwise stated, all monetary sums stated in this report are in Hong Kong
Dollars. The Exchange rate adopted in our valuations is approximately 4.6127 Thai
Baht = 1 Hong Kong Dollar which was approximately the prevailing exchange rate as at
the date of valuation.

Qur valuations are summarized in the valuation certificates attached.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of
Sallmanns (Far East) Limited
Andrew Langdon
AAPI MRICS
Managing Director

Note : Andrew Langdon is a Chartered Surveyor who has 10 years experience in the valuation of properties
in Thailand and 16 years of property valuation experience in Australia and throughout South East

Asia.
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APPENDIX III

VALUATION REPORTS ON THE PROPERTIES

Property No. 1

An office building
named “Chevalier
House” No. 540
corner of
Bamrungmuang Road

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description

The property comprises a

§ level office building of
some 25 years of age in good
condition.

Particular of
Occupancy

The property is
currently owner
occupied for office
purposes. Property
held for owner

Lessee Interest
in existing state
as at 31 January
2007

Thai Baht
41,000,000

HK$8,888,500

and Yukol Road, The total net rentable floor occupation.
Debsirin Subdistrict, area of the office building is
Pom Prab Szttupai approximately 1.456 sq.m.
District, Bangkok
Naotes |
1. Pursuant to a title deeds;
Title Deed No. Lot No. Area
No.  New (01d) Survey No. Rai Ngan Sq.wah
1. 6818 324 (339) 1829 a 0 14
2. 6819 323 (340) 1830 0 0 14
3. 6820 322 (341) 1831 ¢ 0 27
4. 15145 321 (1357) 5605 0 0 10
Total 0 0 65
Cadastral No. 5036 11T 6220-16
Subdistrict Debsirin {Pom Prap Sattrupai)
District Pom Prap Sattrupai (Sam Peang)
Province Bangkok
Tenure Freehold
Registered Owner Sup Aswin Limited, a subsidiary of the Group
Enrcumbrances Mortgaged 1o Bank of Asia Public Co., Lid.
(Changed to UOB (Thai) Plc)
2. Exchange rate as at 31 January 2007 is 4.6127 Thai Baht per | Hong Kong Dollar.
3. Date of Valuation — 31 January 2007
4. Valvuation Method — Direct Comparison
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Property No. 2

Condominium Unit,
Room No. 17/353,
17th Fl.. at Saranjai
Mansion I, Soi
Sukbumvit 4 (NaNa-
Tai), Sukhumvit Road,
Klongton Subdistrict,
Klongtoey District,

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description

The Subject property
comprise condominium unit,
located at room no. 17/353 on
17th floor with in Saranjai

Mansion 1, total floor area

Particular of
Occupancy

The property is
currently occupied for
residential purposes.
Property held for

owner occupation.

approximately 83.29 sq.m.
The age of the building is
approximately 14 years and

Lessee Interest

in existing state
at as 31st January
2007

Thai Baht
2,800,000

HK$607,000

Bangkok good condition. Facilities are
electricity, water supply, car
park, elevators, staircases,
24 hours security and
telephone systems. The access
is via Soi Sukhumvit 4 (Nana-
Tai) and Soi Sukhumvit 6.
Zoning is high density
residential
Notes :
5. Pursuant to a title deed;
Building Building Title Strata Fioor Area Proportion of
Name Neo. Room no. Floor (Sq. m.) Ownership
Saranjai Mansion | 17/535 17 83.29 22.7/10,000
Subdistrict Klongton (Bangkapi Fang Tai)
District Phrakhanong (Bangkapi}
Province Bangkok
Tenure Freehold
Registered Owner Sup Aswin Limited, a subsidiary of the Group
Encumbrance None
6. Exchange rate as at 31 January 2007 is 4.6127 Thai Baht per 1 Hong Kong Dollar.
7. Date of Valuation — 31 January 2007
8. Valuation Method — Direct Comparison
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Property No. 3

A leasehold retail
shop, unit 303 Silom
Complex shopping
mall 3rd floor Silom
Road, Bangrak
District, Bangkok

Notes :

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description

The property comprises &
single irregular shaped
leasehold retail shop.

The twtal net rentable floor
area of the shop is
approximately 71 sq.m.

A lease for the property was
granted on December 18th
1995 for a 16 years and

2 months lease term expiring
on 30 November 2011,
Zoning is commercial

9. Pursuant to a lease contract;

Lessor
Lessee
Term of Period

Date of beginning

Date of ending
Encumbrance

Particular of
Occupancy

The property is
currently occupied by
Sup Aswin Limited for
retail purposes.
Property held for
owner occupation.

Silom Complex and Service Co.. Ltd.

Sup Aswin Limited, a subsidiary of the Group

16 years and 2 months

18 December 1995
30 November 2011

None

Lessee Interest

in existing state
as at 31st January
2007

Thai Baht
2,200,000

HK$476,900

10. Exchange rate as at 31 January 2007 is 4.6127 Thai Baht per 1 Hong Kong Dollar.

. Date of Valuation — 31 January 2007

12. Valuation Method — Direct Comparison
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Property No. 4

A leasehold retail
shop, unit 40-41]
Fortune Town
shopping mall 2nd
floor Ratchadapisek
Road, Dindang
District, Bangkok

Notes :

13. Pursuant 1o a lease contract;
Lessor Univest Land PCL.
Lessee

Term of Period

Date of beginning

Date of ending
Encumbrance

VALUATION CERTIFICATE

Description

The property comprises a
single irregular shaped
leasehold retail shop.

The total net rentable floor
area of the shop is
approximately 53.98 sq.m.

A lease for the property was
granted on | May 1995 for a
16 years and 4 months lease
term expiring on 31 August

2011

Zoning is high density
residential.

Sup Aswin Limited, a subsidiary of the Group
16 years and 4 months

1 May 1995
31 August 2011
None

Particular of
Occupancy

The property is
currently occupied by

Sup Aswin Limited for

retail purposes.
Property held for

owner occupation.

Lessee Interest

in existing state
as at 31st January
2007

Thai Baht
1,600,000

HK$346,900

14. Exchange rate as at 31 January 2007 is 4.6127 Thai Baht per 1 Hong Kong Dollar.

15. Date of Valuation — 31 January 2007

16. Valuation Method — Direct Comparison
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APPENDIX IV GENERAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors jointly and severally
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular with
regard to the Company and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries and that to the best
of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
i. Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO {including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
S352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a} Interests in the Company — Shares (long position)

Number of Shares Approximate
Personal ~ Corporate percentage
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total  of interest
{%)
Dr. Chow Beneficial owner 6,815,854 107,822.933% 114,68.787 6.29
and interest of
controlled
corporation
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 —  2.400,000 1.26
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 — 451,200 0.24
Shinichi YONEHARA  Beneficial owner 600 - 600 (.00032

*  Dr. Chow had notified the Company that under the SFO, he wa: deemed 1o be interested
i 107,822,933 Shares which were held by CIHL as Dr. Caow beneficially owned
150,356,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately 53.97% of the issued shure
capital of CIHL. Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested in these Shares under the SFO
and these Shares were same as those Shares disclosed in the section “Substantial
Shareholders’ interests in securities” below,
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(b) Interests in associated corporation - shares (long position)

Name of Directors

br. Chow

KUOK Hoi Sang
KAN Ka Hon
Shinichi YONEHARA

Number of
ordinary shares

Associated Personal

corporation  Capacity interests Total
CIHL Beneficial owner 150,356,359 150,356,359
CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216
CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040
CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671

Approximate
percentage
of interest

(%)

53.97
0.04
0.0

.00

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was

known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person

had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such

provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to $352 of the SFO, to be

recorded in the register referred to therein; or were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

it. Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to the Directors and the

chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or

corporations in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) which had been
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of

the SFO were as follows:

Substantial shareholders

Dr, Chow

MIYAKAWA Michiko
CIHL

Chevalier (HK) Limited
Firstland Company Limited

Capacity

Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner
Beneficial owner
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Number of Approximate
Shares held percentage of
{Long position) interest
(%)

114,638,787 (Notes I and 3) 60.29
114,638.787 (Notes 2 and 3) 60.29
107,822,933 (Note 3) 56.70
13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.08
13,471,200 (Note 3) 1.08
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Number of Approximate
Shares held percentage of
Substantial shareholders Capacity {Long position) interest
{%)
CHEN Wai Wai, Vivien Beneficial owner 18,800.000 (Nore 4) 9.89
Crosby [nvestment Interest of controlled 18,800,000 (Note 4) 9.89
Holdings Inc. corporation
Nan Fung Resources Interest of controlled  18.800.000 (Note 4) 9.89
Limited corporation
Gentfull Investment Beneficial owner 18,800,000 (Note 4) 989
Limited
Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these Shares were held by Dr. Chow as (i} personal interests of 6,813,854,
(i1} corporate interests of 107,822,933 in which Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr. Chow, was deemed to
be interested in the same parcel of 114,638,787 Shares held by Dr. Chow.

3. These Shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland Company
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chevalier
(HK) Limited. Chevalier (HK) Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under
Part XV of the SFO, Chevalier (HK) Limited, CIHL, Dr. Chow and his spouse were deemed
to be interested in 13,471,200 Shares.

4. Ms. Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc., Nan Fung Resources Limited
are taken to be interested in 18,800,000 Shares which were held by Gentfull Investment
Limited. Gentfull Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources Limited and
in turn wholly owned by Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. which is 100% owned by Ms.
Chen Wai Wai, Vivien.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as was known to
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, beneficiaily interested in 10%

or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
‘ circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group or in any options in
‘ respect of such capital.

|
3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had an interest in any business

constituting a competing business to the Group.
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4. OTHER INTERESTS OF THE DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date:

(i)

(ii)

none of the Directors had any interest, either direct or indirect, in any assets
which have been, since 31 March 2006, being the date to which the latest published
audited accounts of the Group were made up, acquired or disposed of by or
leased to any member of the Group, or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of
by or leased to any member of the Group; and

none of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement
entered into by any member of the Group which was subsisting as at the date of
this circular and is significant in relation to the business of the Group.

5. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts have been entered into by members of the Group within two
vears preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material;

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

the share purchase agreement dated 6 April 2005 in relation to the acquisition of
Pacific Coffee;

the escrow agreement dated 20 May 2005 in relation to the acquisition of Pacific
Coffee;

the share purchase agreement dated 25 November 2006 in relation to the acquisition
of all the issued shares of SEL;

the escrow agreement dated 31 January 2007 in relation to the acquisition of all
the issued shares of SEL;

the shareholders’ agreement dated 31 January 2007 in relation to the acquisition
of all the issued shares of SEL; and

the Agreement.

6. SERVICE CONTRACT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had entered, or were proposing
to enter, into any service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not expiring
or may not be terminated by the Company within a year without payment of any compensation
{other than statutory compensation).
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7. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the members of the Group was engaged in
any litigation, arbitration of material importance or claim of material importance pending or
threatened against any member of the Group,

8. EXPERTS AND CONSENTS

The following are the qualifications of the experts who have been named in this circular
or have given opinions or advice which are contained in this circular:

Names Qualifications

Anglo Chinese A licensed corporation under the SFO
to conduct type 1(dealing in securities),
type 4 (advising an securities), type 6
(advising on corporate finance) and
type 9 (asset marnagement) regulated
activities

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ") Professional valuers
Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank™)  Professional valuers
Sallmanns (Far East) Limited (*Sallmanns™) Professional valuers

Each of the above experts, has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the
issue of this circular with the inclusion of its letter and the reference to its name in the form
and context in which il appears.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the above experts had any shareholding in the
Group or any right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for securities in the Group, nor did they have any interest, direct or
indirect, in any assets which had, since 31 March 2006, being the date to which the latest
published audited consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up, been acquired
or disposed of by or leased to the Group, or were proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or
leased to the Group.

9, DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business
hours at 22nd Floor, Chevatier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloen,

Hong Kong, from the date of this circular up to 2 May 2007

—  the memorandum and bye-laws of the Company;
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10.

the published audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
two financial years ended 31 March 2006, the text of which is set out in Appendix
I to this circular;

the published unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2006, the text of which is set
out in Appendix 1 to this circular;

the letter from the Independent Board Commitiee, the text of which is set out on
page 17 of this circular;

the letter from Anglo Chinese, the text of which is set out on pages 18 to 26 of
this circular;

the valuation reports from DTZ, Knight Frank and Sallmanns respectively, the
text of which is set out in Appendix I1I to this circular;

the consent letters from DTZ, Knight Frank and Sallmanns as referred to in the
section headed “Experts and consents” in this appendix;

the circular of the Company dated 7 February 2007 in respect of the acquisition
of all the issued shares of SEL; and

the material contracts referred 10 in the section headed “Material Contracts” in
this appendix.

MISCELLANEOQUS

(a)

(b)

<)

(d)

The qualified accountant and the secretary of the Company is Mr. KAN Ka Hon,
FCCA. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda, its head office and its principal place of
business is sitvated at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company is
Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

In the event of inconsistency, the English text of this circular shall prevail over
the Chinese text.
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NOTICE OF THE SGM

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEmsEERERAA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special general meeting of Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited (the “Company™) will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 2 May 2007 at
22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong, for
the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing, with or without modification, the
following resolutions of the Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the disposal by the Company to Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(“CIHL™) of the IT Business (as more particularly described in the circular of the Company
dated 4 April 2007, a copy of which has been initialled by the chairman of the special general
meeting) pursuant to the agreement dated 12 March 2007 entered into between the Company
and CIHL {(the “Agreement”) be and is hereby approved AND THAT the directors of the
Company be and are hereby authorized to take such action and execute such documents as
they may consider appropriate and expedient in respect of the completion of the proposed
transaction contemplated under the Agreement.”

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

“THAT subject to the due registration of the new name with the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda being completed, the name of the Company be changed frem “Chevalier iTech
Holdings Limited” to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and the new Chinese name of “J%
k{2 HE#E B FR 22 ¥ be adopted by the Company for identification purposes only AND
THAT the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized generally to take such
action and execute such documents as they may consider necessary and expedient to effect the
change of name of the Company.”

Yours faithfully,

By order of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Kan Ka Hon
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007

* for identification purposes only

— 110 —




NOTICE OF THE SGM

Registered office: Head office and principal place of business:
Canon’s Court 22nd Floor
22 Victoria Street Chevalier Commercial Centre
Hamilton, HM12 8 Wang Hoi Road
Bermuda Kowloon Bay
Hong Kong
Notes:

)

2)

(3)

(4)

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and, on a poll
vote on his behalf, and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy for use at the
meeting is enclosed.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy, together with any power of attorney or authority under which it is
signed or a certified copy of that power of attorney or autherity, must be deposited at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude a shareholder of the Company from attending
and voting in person at the meeting convened or any adjournment thereof and in such event, the authority
of the proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

In case of joint holders of any share, if more than one of such joint holders be present at any meeting, the
vote of the senior who tenders a vote shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint
holders, and for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members of the Company in respect of the joint holding.
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3. BHEBRBZAMME

Sallmanns (Far Ezst} Limited

L7%/1 Bangkok Union [nsurance Bldg,, S ll G

20" Floor, Unit 2, Surawengse Rd.. a ln anns roup
Surlyawongse, Bangrak, Bangkok 10500, Thailand

Tel: (662) 634 8500 Fax: (662) 634 8511
e-mail: bangkok @saltmannsthailand.com

International Property Consultants & Valuers
www sallmannsthailand.com
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RELARENRAE  YECHABESERALEZHMBREM  UEMET#R
HEEHuEYEERN _2ZLF-A=Z+—B(IMEHEHA ) TTEEHR
PRRAEEMEZER -

BEHBATHT KM 2 BFa XA E B (7 Saranjai Mansion)
ZHEDEBTHEH: MESHRZ EFNEWERGOIKEERHE - &
HERAAREFEEFATER CAMREBZER THEHL WM AT RIGZ
fhEr & 8|l -

B R E LS5 B A (B Silom Centre & Fortune Town¥) 2 42) Z {EE TS
Rk SRAE . MESEHEZ ER IR TdR —HE &2 631 F #
EHARZHBERMELZ HEAEELR - AR T2 R PHIT L5
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Sallmanns (Far East) Limited
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Andrew Langdon
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Btat ©  Andrew LangdonftfE B U HBILE - A 0FREAYRBELE > I RELI6F
WHERE R HEMGETE -

— g9 __



Cadastral No.
4 B B,

& 5

#H i

%
BREE
EHEAR

5036 III 6220-16

it &% = Yo B AN A O E
i
BR-22LY
—HA=+—H
ZBRF
HR— Uit A5 HI ¥ 41 i
fi o & % [ No. 540 ZWEAT--HEARYN  BYYNERLEY £33
corner of BMAN  HF-+HEM R - 9%l 41,000,000
Bamrungmuang Road #% : I R4 - EEEH-
and Yuko! Road, HE % 8,888, 50001
Debsirin Subdistrict, FHHRMFHATHHEEH
Pom Prab Sattupai B1456F K -
Distict] %4 & [ K+
KR
Sfat -
1. W85 G
B} A O o B 3% Area
B OF) () 7 5 5 5 Rai Ngan Sq. wah
1. 6818 324 (339) 1829 0 0 14
2. 6819 323 (340) 1830 0 1] 14
3. 6820 322 (34D 1831 0 0 27
4. 15145 321 (1357) 5605 0 0 10
Total 0 0 65

Debsirin (Pom Prap Sattrupai)

Pom Prap Sattrupai (Sam Peang)

88
A HHE

Sup Aswin Limited » 2 48 [ & f B 2w
] Bank of Asia Public Co., Ltd.fE & iF
(FL % T 4 5 UOB (Thai} Plc)

2. REZFZELF-HZT—HNAREEEN I THEHI6127 -

3. e ——FFLE-H=1+—B

4. EETK — HEE®
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B E

Klongton (Bangkapi Fang Tai)

Phrakhanong (Bangkapi)

& 4
KA

Sup Aswin Limited » 7= 45 NI ¥ Fit B3 24 &)

s

6. RZFFLE—AZF— AW EBREGETITH L KI6127 -
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7 B g g R o AL
Bt s & ZYHEBFLRI17353E RURRELEE 8k
[Condominium Unit, T-E# [Saranjai Mansion R - RANE 2,800,000
Room No. 17/353, REER S R8320FH  HAE -
17th FI., at Saranjai * oo HIEA B4 R H# % 607,0007T
Mansion 1, Soi RAF - G B U -
Sukhumvit 4 (NaNa- PR 46H8 - (T4 - JHiE
Tai), Sukhumvit # - B o mANER
Road, Klongton TREFHERR - HRES
Subdistrict, PREREEE - BIRFER
Klongtoey [ Sci Sukhumvit 4 (Nana-
District] = Tai) and Soi Sukhumvit 6
Bl -
et -
5. RIBE &
B 5° 1 Bt
R BB o€ 3 | (EAR) X &
Saranjai Mansion 1 17/535 17 22.7/10,000
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R-IF®RLE
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ZHERF
WR= g AR AL i B
upesimEY B — @R A B Sup i 73
FE & Tunit 303 Silom RO AZHIELH - Aswin Limitzd i 2,200,000
Complex shopping BEYMHE - &Y
mall 3rd floor Silom RAMBPEOHHA7IFTSF HAFEEGH- # W 476,900
Road, Bangrak * -
District]
BYHER—ANEE+TZ
H+-ABfid %
——fEt-H=+HILE
WesE K2 A A
Rotd¥EhHER -
WA -
9, Pursuant to a lease contract;
WA Silom Complex and Service Co., Ltd.
R A Sup Aswin Limited » = 35 [ Bf 5§ -2 7
A 18 165 K28 A
F 4 H I —NLNWAEFE+ZA+ AR
gwram ZF——%+—H=+H
EHEAW k3
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ZHWTF
wmEN i g3 i - hY BAUEY
ReEsHARSE BYUHAE-BATHNE  ZWERBSup &
75 & [ unit 40-41 AR R F L - Aswin Limited {& f 1,600,000
Fortune Town BEGR® - %W
shopping mall 2nd MEHPEMSLHSIIT Hh%EIXEH- # % 346,900
floor Ratchadapisek FH e
Road. Dindang
District| o EMER—ILNEFLR
—HEME . R F——

EFAA=Z+—HIEAHMI6
ERAMBAHEBMER -

B A W A -

pt et -
13. Pursuant to a lease coatract;
S A : Univest Land PCL.
AEA : Sup Aswin Limited > 4= 12 M B | 2 &
HAFEM : 164 K af@ A
FAfs A : —WAAEEA—R
HEWHM : —E——HFNR=+-—H
EfigMm : i3

14, RIBRLE—A=S+—HHALERBERITAFEHKII27 -

15. {EEAN ——-—FEXLE—A=1+—H

16. fEEHFX — HEHLE
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1. T

AEEVEE I THURBEERALAZEN - HEHERABRHTEARA
AEE RO Z AL E RS RB 2L EREL - HARERE - ®
BERMENE  ABERPIREZEANBFRASZERETHED » A ED
WEMEBEE  BESAFRABZEMAEEERY -

2. WRZEE

i, WHERRERTHEAAZ@HH#EL

RERETHEATAN APRAQXRNETETHABNREF L REERL
A (BB HF R BHEIIEXVER) ZR M4 - MERG RIS FEECRE
EHREMBRAEXVEBIRE BA A LA ARBAZMERER (2
FESRB LRSS RHEGEFAGRXET BRRERE 2 BERER) - Tk
R CLHERREBS VB EOAEINEREATHFREZECMANZESE R
HE > IRBEETFNEANGE LRI ZER LNERNT -

(i) KR — BB (HFH)
B&ren B 25 BE &Y
nmEEE o6 MAlE AdHn me wak

(%)

R+ THBAAL 6815854 107,822,933¢ 114,638,787 60.29
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED .
EERERRARA A S

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited ltiability)

{Stock code: 508)

FORM OF PROXY
FOR SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

wWet?
of
being the registered holder(s) of®® shares of HK3$0.50 each in the
share capital of CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company™), hereby appoint the Chairman
of the Meeting or, failing him®,
of
as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Special General Meeting of the
Company to be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 2 May, 2007 at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre,

8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong and at any adjournment thereof on the undermentioned
resolutions as indicated and if no such indication is given as my/our proxy thinks fit:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION FOR® AGAINST®

To approve the disposal by the Company to Chevalier International
Holdings Limited (“CIHL”) of the IT Business (as more particularly
described in the circular of the Company dated 4 April 2007) pursuant to
the agreement dated 12 March 2007 enlered into between the Company
and CIHL (the “Agreement”) and authorise the directors of the Company
to take all necessary actions to complete the proposed transaction
contemplated under the Agreement.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

To approve the change of name of the Company to “Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the new Chinese name of “} 4 iZ
B Z A A7 PR 42 @17 and to authorise the directors of the Company to take

Foeries
sty

all necessary actions to effect the change of name.

Signature: Date:

Notes:

(D Full name(s) and address(es) must be inscrted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

(2) Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to
relate to all the shares in the share capital of the Company registered in your name(s).

3) If any proxy other than the chairman of the Meeting is preferred, strike out the words “the Chairman of the Meeting or, failing

him™ herein and insert the name and address of the proxy desired in the space provided. The proxy need not be a inember of
the Company. but must attend the Meeting in person to represent you. Any alteration made 1o this form of proxy should be
initialled by the person who signs it.

(4) Please indicate with a **v"” in the relevant box how you wish the proxy to vote on your behalf. If this form of proxy is
returned without any indication, you will be deemed to bave authorized your proxy to vote or abstain from vouing as he thinks
fit.,

(5) This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing, or in the case of a corporation, this
form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or awcerney duly authorised on that
behalf.

(6) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the
cxclusion of the votes of the other joint holder(s) and for this purpose, seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the register of members of the Company.

(7} To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed (or a
notarially certified copy thereol), must be completed and depusited at the Company’s branch share registrars in Hong Kong,
Standard Registrars Limited, at 261h Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meeting. Delivery of this form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and
voting in person at the Meeting and in such event, this form of proxy will be deemed 1o be revoked.

* Far identification purpose only
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
cE R R RA A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508)

RESULTS OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING
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The Board is pleased to announce that the Ordinary Resolution in respect of the Disposal was
duly passed by the Independent Shareholders by way of poll and the Special Resolution in
respect of the change of name of the Company was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of
poll at the SGM held on 2 May 2007.

Reference is made to the circular issued by the Company dated 4 April 2007 (the “Circular”) in
relation to, among others, the major and connected transaction in relation to the disposal of the 1T
Business of the Company and the proposed change of name of the Company. Capitalised terms
used herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Circular unless the context

requires otherwise.

The Board is pleased to announce that at the SGM held on 2 May 2007, the ordinary resolution
for approving the Disposal (the “Ordinary Resolution™) was duly passed by the Independent
Shareholders by way of poll and the special resolution for approving the change of name of the
Company (the “Special Resolution™) was duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.

As at the date of the SGM, there were 190,155,871 Shares in issue. None of these 190,155,871
Shares entitie the holders to attend and vote only against the Ordinary Resolution and the Special
Resolution at the SGM under the Listing Rules. As stated in the Circular, no Shareholder was
required to abstain from the voting on the Special Resolution while CIHL. and its associates, Dr.
Chow and his associates, being connected persons of the Company who have interest in the
Disposal, were required to abstain from voting on the Ordinary Resolution and have done so at
the SGM. As at the date of the SGM, CIHL and its associates were interested in 107,822,933 and
Dr. Chow and his associates were interested in 6,815,854 Shares. Accordingly, the number of
Shares entitling the holders to attend and vote for or against the Ordinary Resolution at the SGM
was 75,517,084 Shares, representing approximately 39.71% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the SGM. Holders of 36,340,933 and 143,556,799 Shares, representing
approximately 19.11% and 75.49% of the total issued share capital of the Company, voted either
in person, by proxy or corporate representative on the Ordinary Resolution and the Special
Resolution at the SGM respectively. The branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Standard Registrars Limited, acted as the scrutineer of the vote-taking at the SGM.
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proposed at the SGM were as follows:

Number of votes (%)

For Against

Ordinary Resolution (Note 1) 36,340,933 Shares Nil
(100%) (0 %)

Special Resolution (Note 2) 143,556,799 Shares Nil
(100%) (0%)

Notes:

1. A total of 36,340,933 Shares were held by the holders who attended in person, by proxy or corporate
representative and were entitled to vote on and were not required to abstain from voting on the Ordinary
Resolution at the SGM. The percentages represent the number of votes cast as a percentage of such total
number of Shares.

2. A total of 143,556,799 Shares were held by holders who attended in person, by proxy or corporate
representative and were entitled to vote and were not required to abstain from voting on the Special
Resolution at the SGM. The percentages represent the number of votes cast as a percentage of such total
number of Shares.

As disclosed in the Circular, the proposed change of name of the Company is subject to (a)
approval of the Shareholders by passing the Special Resolution; and (b) the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda granting approval for the change of name of the Company being granted by the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. Now that the Special Resolution has been duly passed, the
Company will apply to the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda for the change of name. The
Company will make an announcement should the change of name of the Company become effective.

By Order of the Board of
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 May 2007
*  for identification only

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as executive Direciors
and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as independent non-
executive Directors.

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.
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CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL CHEVALIER iTECH

HOLDINGS LIMITED HOLDINGS LIMITED
ELEpgBgRa- LB BERARAH

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}
(Stock Code: 025) (Stock Code: 508)
DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION PLACING OF NEW SHARES

PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND SUBSCRIPTION FOR NEW SHARES
BY CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
IN
CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED AND
SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

On 3 May 2007, CIHL and Dr. Chow have agreed to place, through their placing agent, DBS,
32,200,000 existing ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each in the share capital of CiTL to independent
investors at a price of HK$3.70 per Share and CIHL has agreed to subscribe for 25,384,146 new
Shares at the price of HK$3.70 per Share.

The Placing is (0 be placed by DBS on a best effort basis.

The 25,384,146 Subscription Shares represent approximately 13.35% of the existing issued share
capital of CiTL of 190,155,871 Shares and approximately 11.78% of CiTL’s issued share capital
as enlarged by the Subscription of 25,384,146 Subscription Shares. The net proceeds from the
Subscription of approximately HK$91.6 million will be used by the CiTL Group for working
capital.

As at the date of this announcement, CIHL and Dr. Chow have approximately 56.70% and 3.58%
interest in CiTL, respectively. The shareholding of CIHL in CiTL will be reduced to approximately
43.35% immediately upon completion of the Placing and approximately 50.02% immediately upon
completion of the Subscription. Dr. Chow will cease to directly hold any shares in CiTL after the
Placing and the Subscription.

Trading in the shares of CIHL and CiTL were suspended from 2:30 p.m. on 2 May 2007 at the
request of CIHL and CiTL pending the issue of this announcement and applications have been
made to the Stock Exchange for the resumption of trading of the shares of CIHL and CiTL from
9:30 a.m. on 4 May 2007.




Holdings Limited (“CiTL”) (the “Directors”) are pleased to announce that CIHL and Dr. Chow Yei
Ching (“Dr. Chow” together with CIHL, the “Vendors™ and each of them a “Vendor™) have agreed to
place, through the placing agent, DBS Asia Capital Limited (“DBS”), 32,200,000 existing ordinary
shares (the “Placing Shares”) of HK$0.50 each (“Shares”) in the share capital of CiTL to independent
investors at a price of HK$3.70 per Share (the “Placing”) and CIHL will subscribe for 25,384,146
new Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at the price of HK$3.70 per Share (the “Subscription”).
Details of the Placing and the Subscription are as follows:—

A. PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES
Major terms of the placing agreement dated 3 May 2007 (the “Placing Agreement”):—
Vendors:

CIHL, the controlling shareholder of CiTL
Dr. Chow, a director of CIHL and CiTL and a controlling shareholder of CIHL

Placing agent:
DBS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Directors confirm, having
made all reasonable enquiries, that each of DBS and its ultimate beneficial owners is independent
of. not connected with the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of CiTL or any
of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates (as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules™)).

As at the date of this announcement, DBS does not beneficially hold any Shares.
Placees:

The placees (which will be six or more individual, corporate and/or institutional investors) and
their respective ultimate beneficial owners (i) will not be connected persons (as defined under
the Listing Rules); (ii) will be third parties independent of and do not act in concert with any of
the Vendors; (iii) are independent of CiTL and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules); and (iv) will not be connected with the directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of CiTL or any of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates.

No placee will become a substantial shareholder of CiTL as a result of the Placing.
Placing price:
HK$3.70 per Placing Share. This price was agreed after arm’s length negotiations and represents:—

(i) a discount of approximately 13.95% to the closing price of HK$4.30 per Share quoted on
the Stock Exchange on 2 May 2007 (the “Suspension Date™);

(ii) a discount of approximately 5.13% to the closing price of HK$3.90 per Share quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 30 April 2007, being the last trading day of the Shares immediately before
the Suspension Date;



~ quoted on the Stock Exchange from 24 April 2007 to 30 April 2007, both dates inclusive,
being the last five trading days of the Shares immediately before the Suspension Date;

(iv) a premium of approximately 3.38% over the average closing price of approximately
HK$3.579 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange from 17 April 2007 to 30 April 2007,
both dates inclusive, being the last ten trading days of the Shares immediately before the
Suspension Date; and

(v) apremium of approximately 9.14% over the average closing price of approximately HK$3.39
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange from 15 March 2007 to 30 April 2007, both
dates inclusive, being the last thirty trading days of the Sharcs immediately before the
Suspension Date.

Rights
The Placing Shares will rank equally with the existing Shares.
Placing Shares

The 25,384,146 Placing Shares and 6,815,854 Placing Shares to be placed by CIHL and Dr.
Chow, representing approximately 13.35% and 3.58% of the existing issued share capital of
CiTL of 190,155,871 Shares, respectively.

The Placing is to be conducted by DBS on a best effort basis.
Completion of the Placing
Subject to no breach of representations, warranties, undertakings or obligations of CiTL or CIHL
or Dr. Chow at or prior to completion of the Placing, the completion of the Placing will take
place on or before § May 2007.
B. SUBSCRIPTION OF 25,384,146 NEW SHARES
Major terms of the subscription agreement dated 3 May 2007:—
Subscriber:
CIHL
Issuer:
CiTL
Subscription Shares:

The 25,384,146 new Shares to be issued under the Subscription represents approximately 13.35%
of the existing issued share capital of CiTL and approximately 11.78% of the issued share capital
of CiTL as enlarged by the issue of the Subscription Shares.

Subscription Price:

HK$3.70 per Subscription Share. On the basis of estimated net proceeds to CiTL of approximately
HK$91.6 million from the Subscription, this represents a net price of HK$3.61 per Subscription
Share to CiTL.
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Shares and the Subscription of the 25,384,146 Subscription Shares. Dr. Chow will bear the costs
and expenses incurred in respect of the Placing of the 6,815,854 Placing Shares. The costs and
expenses for the Placing and the Subscription to be borne by CiTL is estimated to be approximately
HK$2.3 million, which the Directors consider to be fair and reasonable.

General Mandate to issue Subscription Shares:

The Subscription Shares will be issued pursnant to the general mandate to allot, issue and deal
with Shares granted to the directors of CiTL by resolution of its shareholders passed at CiTL’s
annual general meeting held on 28 September 2006. CiTL is authorized to allot, issue or otherwise
deal with up to 38,031,174 new Shares under the General Mandate. As at the date of this
announcement, no Shares have been issued by CiTL under the General Mandate.

Ranking of the Subscription Shares

The Subscription Shares will rank equally with Shares in issue at the time of issue and allotment
of the Subscription Shares.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the Subscription of approximately HK$91.6 million will be used by CiTL
and its subsidiaries (the “CiTL Group™) for the purpose of working capital.

Condition of the Subscription
The Subscription is conditional upon, inter alia:
a) completion of the Placing; and

b} the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting listing of, and permission to deal in,
the Subscription Shares to be issued under the Subscription.

Completion

Under the Listing Rules, the Subscription must be completed within 14 days from the date of the
Placing Agreement, that is, on or before 17 May 2007 (or such later date as CiTL and CIHL may
agree, such agreement not to unreasonably withheld or delayed and subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules).

In the event that the conditions to the Subscription are not fulfilled by 17 May 2007, or in the
event that the Subscription Shares are yet to be issued to CIHL by 17 May 2007, i.e. within 14
days after execution of the Placing Agreement, CiTL and CIHL may elect, subject to compliance
with all requirements including the shareholders’ approval in relation to connected transactions
ander the Listing Rules, to postpone completion of the Subscription to a later date to be agreed
between CiTL and CIHL.

Application for listing

Application will be made by CiTL to the Stock Exchange to grant the listing of and permission
to deal in the Subscription Shares.



The shareholding of the Vendors in CiTL immediately before completion of the Placing,
immediately after completion of the Placing but before completion of the Subscription, and
immediately after completion of both the Placing and the Subscription are and will be as follows:—

After the

Name of Placing and
shareholders Before the Placing After the Placing the Subseription

No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Dr. Chow 0,815,854 3.58 0 0.00 0 0.00
CIHL 107,822,933  56.70 82,438,787 43.35 107,822,933 50.02
Other Directors 5,842,200 3.07 5,842,200 3.07 5,842,200 2.71
Public 69,674,884 36.65 101,874,884 53.58 101,874,884 47.27
Total 190,155,871 100.00 190,155,871 100.00 215,540,017 100.00

Note: Assumes that other than the Subscription Shares, no new Shares are issued or purchascd by CiTL and
other than the Placing Shares, no Shares are sold or purchased by the Vendors, in each case after the date
of this announcement up 1o the date of the completion of the Subscription, and currently there are no
converiibles in relation (o the Shares.

REASON FOR THE PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION

CiTL is an investment holding company. Upon completion of the disposal of the [T business,
which has been approved by the independent shareholders at the special general meeting held on
2 May 2007, the CiTL Group will be principally engaged in food & beverage business. In view
of the current market conditions, the directors of CiTL consider that the Placing and Subscription
represents a good opportunity to raise capital for CiTL while broadening the sharcholders base
and the capital base of CiTL and also enables the CiTL Group to have a higher level of working
capital to further develop its business.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the terms of the
Placing and the Subscription are on normal commercial terms and are fair and reasonable based
on the current market conditions and the Placing and the Subscription are in the interests of
CIHL and CiTL and their respective sharecholders as a whole.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION FOR CIHL

As a result of the placing of the Placing Shares, the interests of CIHL in CiTL would be reduced to
approximately 43.35%, the Placing is considered as a discloseable transaction of CIHL. Upon completion
of the Subscription, CIHL will hold approximately 50.02% of the issued share capital of CiTL. Baring any
unforeseen circumstances, the reduction of CIHL’s interest in CiTL is temporary and CiTL will be
accounted as, and continue to be, a subsidiary of CIHL after the completion of the Subscription and CIHL
will not sustain any gain and loss in such discloseable transaction.




During the past 12 months, CiTL has carried out the following fund raising exercise:—

Date of Capital raising  Net proceeds

announcement activity raised Use of proceeds

30 August 2006 Subscription of HK$44.6 million HK$42.8 million has been
new shares applied as first tranche

consideration payment for

the acquisition of Sinochina
Enterprises Limited (“SEL”).
SEL and its subsidiaries are
engaged in ownership and
operation of restaurants and
other food and beverage outlets.

G. GENERAL

CIHL is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged
in the business of construction and engineering, insurance and investment, property investment,
hotel investment, information technology and food & beverage.

CiTL is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the
provision of computer and information communication technology services, food & beverage business
and investment in securities.

According to the audited financial statements of CiTL, as at 31 March 2006, CiTL’s total
consolidated assets amounted to approximately HK$630,832,000 and total consolidated liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$219,556,000 and consolidated profits before and after taxation
for the year ended 31 March 2006 amounted to approximately HK$40,828,000 and HK$36,966,000,
respectively. According to the audited financial statements of CiTL as at 31 March 2005, CiTL’s
total consolidated assets amounted to approximately HK$460,455,000 and total consolidated
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$81,919,000 and consolidated profits before and after
taxation for the year ended 31 March 2005 amounted to approximately HK$1,892,000 and
HK$1,553,000 respectively.

Tradings in the shares of CIHL and CiTL were suspended from 2:30 p.m. on 2 May 2007 at the
request of CIHL and CiTL pending the issue of this announcement and application has been
made to the Stock Exchange for the resumption of trading of the shares of CIHL and CiTL from
9:30 a.m. on 4 May 2007.

By order of the board of directors of By order of the board of directors of
Chevalier International Holdings Limited Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching Chow Yei Ching
Chairman and Managing Director Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 May 2007



Sang, Mr. Tam Kwok Wing, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Fung Pak Kwan, Mr. Kan Ka Hon and
Mr. Ho Chung Leung as executive directors, and Dr. Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph, Mr. Li Kwok Heem,
John and Mr. Sun Kai Dah, George as independent non-executive directors; and

the Board of CiTL comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang,
Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily Chow as executive directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King
Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as independent non-executive directors.

*  for identification purpose only

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.




= Investor
Investment Service Centre
Listed Companies Information

CHEVALIER ITECH<00508> - Unusual price movement

The Stock Exchange has received a message from Chevalier iTech Holdings
Limited which is reproduced as follows:-

"This statement is made at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

We have noted the recent increases in the price of the shares of the
Company and wish to state that we are not aware of any reasons for such
increases.

We also confirm that save as disclosed in the joint announcement dated May
3, 2007 with Chevalier International Holdings Limited regarding the
placing of shares, there are no negotiations or agreements relating to
intended acquisitions or realisations which are discloseable under rule
13.23, neither is the Becard aware of any matter discloseable under the
general obligation imposed by rule 13.09, which is or may be of a price-
sensitive nature.

Made by the order of the Board of the directors of which individually and
jointly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this statement.

For and on behalf of
CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Kan Ka Hon
Company Secretary

As at the date of this anncuncement, the Executive Directors o¢f the
Company are Dr Chow Yei Ching, Messrs Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Kuok Hei
Sang, Kan Ka Hon and Ms. Lily Chow. The Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company are Messrs Yonehara Shinichi, Wu King Cheong, and
Kwong Man Sing.

May 4, 2007"

http://main.ednews.hk/listedcoAlistconews/sehk/20070504/LTN20070504 127 HTM 29-May-2007



I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
HitEegamnERARAGN"
(Formerly known as Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited3t 1 # 8 ¥ Bt 47 B 2 7))

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 508)

APPOINTMENT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board of the Company announces that with effect from 21 May 2007, Mr. CHANG Wan Lung,
Robert was appointed as an Executive Director and Executive Committee Member of the Company.

The board of directors (the “Board”™) of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (formerly known as Chevalier
iTech Holdings Limited 3 =B} 57 4% i 4 R 2 1°) (the “Company”) announces that with effect from
21 May 2007, Mr. CHANG Wan Lung, Robert was appointed as an Executive Director and Executive
Committee Member of the Company.

Mr. CHANG Wan Lung, Robert, aged 43, joined Chevalier Group in 2005 and is currently General
Manager of Business Development. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science from the University of San
Francisco. Mr. Chang was with the Hong Kong Trade Development Councit (“HKTDC”) for more than
17 years, of which he held management positions of increase responsibility, culminating as Senior
Product Promotions Manager. He also served as Director of Northern China in 1999 during his time
with HKTDC.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chang has not held any directorship in any listed public companies in the
last three years and does not hold any position in any member of the Group nor does he have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling
shareholders of the Company and any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. There is neither any service contract between the Company
and Mr. Chang nor any specified term for the length or proposed length of service with the Company in
respect of the directorship. Mr. Chang will hold office until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and will be eligible for re-election. All Directors of thz Company are subject 1o
retirement by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general meeting of the Company
since last re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. Mr. Chang will be entitled to an
annual remuneration which will be determined by the Remuneration Committee of the Board with
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Save as disclosed herein, there is no information to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements
under rules 13.51(2)(h) to 13.51(2)(v) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, nor are there other matters concerning him that need to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

— 11—
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By Order of the Board
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching

Chairman
Hong Kong, 21 May 2007

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching. Mr. Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Miss Lily Chow and Mr. Chang Wan Lung, Robert as
executive directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as

independent non-executive directors.

*  For identification purpose only

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.



I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
HitegnERERAHE"

(Formerly known as Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited - -5 £ B2 B 4i B 4 7] )

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 508)

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The Board is pleased to announce with effect from 4 May 2007, the English name of the Company has
been changed from “Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited” to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” and
the Chinese name “J{ 4 3% 35 ¥ A% 75 BR 4> 7] has been adopted in lieu of “H 4%} 5 32 i 45 BR 2 &~

for identification purpose.

The stock short name of the Company for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange will remain as
“CHEVALIER ITECH ¥ -l £ for the time being. The new stock short name will be announced as
soon as practicable.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2007 (the “Announcement”) and
the circular of the Company dated 4 April 2007 (the “Circular™) relating to, among others, the proposed
change of name of the Company. Capitalised terms used herein shall have the same meanings as those
defined in the Announcement and the Circular.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The Board is pleased to announce that the change of name of the Company has been approved by the
Shareholders at the SGM held on 2 May 2007 and the relevant certificate of change of name regarding
the change of name of the Company to “Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited” was issued by the Registrar
of Companies in Bermuda on 14 May 2007 approving such change. Accordingly, the change of name of
the Company was effective from 4 May 2007. The Chinese name “} £ ¥ 51 4% it 47 BR 2 &) has been
adopted in lieu of “JL =% % 4 i 45 B’ 22 5]~ for identification purpose.

SHORT STOCK NAME

The stock short name of the Company for trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange will remain as
“CHEVALIER ITECH 4%} 4¢” for the time being. The new stock short name will be announced as
soon as practicable.

TRADING ARRANGEMENT

The change of name of the Company will not affect any of the rights of the existing Shareholders. All
existing share certificates in issue bearing the former name of the Company will continue to be evidence
of title to the Shares and will continue to be valid for trading. settlement and registration purposes. An
arrangement has been made for free exchange of the existing share certificates of the Company for new
share certificates printed in the new name of the Company. Shareholders may, if they so wish, during the
period of one month from the date of this announcement, deliver existing share certificates in respect of
the Shares held by them to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
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at the expense of the Company, for the new share certificates bearing the new name of the Company.
After the expiry of such one-month period, share certificates of the Company will be accepted for
exchange at the expense of the Shareholders. Such exchanges will incur a fee of HK$2.50 (or such higher
amount as may from time to time be charged) for each of such certificate to be issued. From the date of
this announcement, any issue of new share certificates will be in the new name of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 May 2007

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching. Mr. Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Miss Lily Chow and Mr. Chang Wan Lung, Robert as
executive Directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as
independent non-executive Directors.

*  For identification purpose only

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.
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makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever

for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
announcement.

I CHEVALIER =

CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
REtZgomEBRAERAA"

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limired liability)
(Stock Code : 508)

CHANGE OF STOCK SHORT NAME

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2007 (the “Announcement”)

relating to, among others, the change of name of the Company. Capitalised terms used herein shall have
the same meanings as those defined in the Announcement.

The Board announces that the stock short name of the Company for trading in the Shares on the Stock
Exchange will be changed from “CHEVALIER ITECH” to “CHEVALIER PAC H-l-iZ 53" with effect
from 28 May 2007. The stock code of the Company of “508” remains unchanged.

By Order of the Board
Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 May 2007

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon. Miss Lily Chow and Mr. Chang Wan Lung, Robert as
executive Directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as
independent non-executive Directors.

&

For identification purpose only

Please also refer to the published version of this annocuncement in The Standard.
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